
Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

AGENDA
 

Thursday, August 17, 2023 
9:30 AM

 
Western Riverside Council of Governments

3390 University Avenue, Suite 200
Riverside, CA 92501

 
 

Remote Meeting Locations:
 

City of Beaumont
Beaumont Civic Center

550 East 6th Street, Map Room
Beaumont, CA  92223

 
City of Calimesa

Senior Center Map Room
908 Park Avenue

Calimesa, CA  92230
 

City of Lake Elsinore
City Hall City Managers Office

130 S. Main Street
Lake Elsinore, CA 92530

 
City of Murrieta
1 Town Square

Murrieta, CA  92562
 

City of Temecula
City Manager's Office

41000 Main Street
Temecula, CA  92590

 
City of Wildomar

23873 Clinton Keith Rd.
Suite 201

1



  
1. CALL TO ORDER (Rob Johnson, Chair)
  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
  
3. ROLL CALL
  
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

At this time members of the public can address the Committee regarding any items within the subject matter jurisdiction
of the Committee that are not separately listed on this agenda. Members of the public will have an opportunity to speak
on agendized items at the time the item is called for discussion. No action may be taken on items not listed on the
agenda unless authorized by law. Whenever possible, lengthy testimony should be presented to the Committee in
writing and only pertinent points presented orally.

Wildomar, CA  92595
 

3593 Eastfield Court
Carmel, CA  93923

 
 

Committee members are asked to attend this meeting in
person unless remote accommodations have previously

been requested and noted on the agenda.  The below
Zoom link is provided for the convenience of members of

the public, presenters, and support staff.

 
 

Public Zoom Link
Meeting ID: 851 4398 9113

Passcode: 843908
Dial in: (669) 900 9128 U.S.

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Government Code Section 54954.2, if
special assistance is needed to participate in the Technical Advisory Committee meeting, please
contact WRCOG at (951) 405-6706.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist
staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.  In
compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, agenda materials distributed within 72 hours prior
to the meeting which are public records relating to an open session agenda item will be available for
inspection by members of the public prior to the meeting at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200,
Riverside, CA, 92501.
 
In addition to commenting at the Committee meeting, members of the public may also submit written
comments before or during the meeting, prior to the close of public comment to lfelix@wrcog.us.
 
Any member of the public requiring a reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting in light
of this announcement shall contact Lucy Felix 72 hours prior to the meeting at (951) 405-6706 or
lfelix@wrcog.us. Later requests will be accommodated to the extent feasible.

The Committee may take any action on any item listed on the agenda, regardless of the Requested Action.

2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85143989113?pwd=VE1NRS9Md3BWZkRnTXJmMFlTbmQxdz09
mailto:lfelix@wrcog.us
mailto:lfelix@wrcog.us


  
5. SELECTION OF TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE LEADERSHIP FOR FISCAL YEAR

2023/2024

 A. Leadership Selection for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and Recognition of Outgoing Chair
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Select a Technical Advisory Committee Chair, Vice-
Chair, and 2nd Vice-Chair for Fiscal Year 2023/2024.

  
6. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. Prior to
the motion to consider any action by the Committee, any public comments on any of the Consent Items will be heard.
There will be no separate action unless members of the Committee request specific items be removed from the
Consent Calendar.

 A. Summary Minutes from the June 15, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Approve the Summary Minutes from the June 15, 2023,
Technical Advisory Committee meeting.

  
7. REPORTS / DISCUSSION

 A. Appointment to the Riverside County Emergency Medical Care Committee
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Appoint one member of the Technical Advisory
Committee as the WRCOG alternate representative to
the Riverside County Emergency Medical Care
Committee.

 B. AB 602 Compliance and Residential Trip Generation Studies Activities Update
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file. 

 C. REAP SRP 1.0 & 2.0 Housing Activities Update
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file.
  
8. REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Kurt WIlson
  
9. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

Members are invited to suggest additional items to be brought forward for discussion at future
Committee meetings.

  
10. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

Members are invited to announce items / activities which may be of general interest to the
Committee.

  
11. NEXT MEETING

The next Technical Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 21, 2023,
at 9:30 a.m., in WRCOG's office at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200, Riverside.

  
12. ADJOURNMENT

3



Item 5.A

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: Leadership Selection for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and Recognition of Outgoing Chair
Contact: Chris Gray, Deputy Executive Director, cgray@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6710
Date: August 17, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Select a Technical Advisory Committee Chair, Vice-Chair, and 2nd Vice-Chair for Fiscal Year
2023/2024.

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to select new Technical Advisory Committee leadership for Fiscal Year (FY)
2023/2024 and recognize the outgoing Chair.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #4 - Communicate proactively about the role and activities of the Council of Governments.

Background: 
WRCOG would like to recognize outgoing Chair Rob Johnson, City of San Jacinto, for his efforts in
leading the Technical Advisory Committee meetings during the previous fiscal year.  Staff appreciates
his hard work and dedication in leading the meetings.
 
WRCOG’s Committee leadership positions are selected at the start of each fiscal year.  The leadership
for the Executive Committee for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 is as follows:
 
Chair:                 Chris Barajas, City of Jurupa Valley
Vice-Chair:         Rita Rogers, City of Perris
2nd Vice-Chair:  Brenda Dennstedt, Western Water
 
Historically, the Technical Advisory Committee positions have coincided with those of the Executive
Committee, although there are no requirements for this pattern stipulated in WRCOG’s JPA or Bylaws.

Prior Action(s): 
None.

Fiscal Impact: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the action of this item.

4

mailto:cgray@wrcog.us


Attachment(s): 
None.

5



Item 6.A

Technical Advisory Committee

Minutes
 

1.     CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the WRCOG Technical Advisory Committee was called to order by Chair Rob Johnson at
9:30 a.m. on June 15, 2023, in WRCOG's office. 
 
2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Johnson led members and guests in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
3.     ROLL CALL
 

City of Beaumont - Elizabeth Gibbs
City of Calimesa - Will Kolbow
City of Canyon Lake - Nicole Dailey
City of Eastvale - Mark Orme
City of Hemet - Mark Prestwich
City of Jurupa Valley - Rod Butler
City of Lake Elsinore - Jason Simpson*
City of Menifee - Armando Villa*
City of Moreno Valley - Michael Lloyd
City of Murrieta - Kim Summers
City of Norco - Lori Sassoon
City of Perris -  Ernie Reyna
City of Riverside - Mike Futrell
City of San Jacinto - Rob Johnson
City of Temecula - Betsy Lowrey
City of Wildomar - Dan York
County of Riverside - Jeff Van Wagenen
EMWD - Jolene Walsh
March JPA - Dan Fairbanks

* Arrived after Roll Call
 
Members absent:
 

City of Banning
City of Corona
Western Water

 
4.     PUBLIC COMMENTS
 

6



There were no public comments.
 
5.     CONSENT CALENDAR – (County of Riverside / Jurupa Valley) 17 yes; 0 no; 0 abstention.  Item
5.A was approved. 
 
A.     Summary Minutes from the May 18, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting
 
Action:

1. Approved the Summary Minutes from the May 18, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee meeting.
 
6.     REPORTS / DISCUSSION
 
A.     I-REN Orientation Meetings
 
Tyler Masters, WRCOG Program Manager, reported that I-REN is composed of WRCOG, CVAG, and
SBCOG, with a goal to implement energy efficiency programs and services within Riverside and San
Bernardino Counties.  There will be a total of 18 orientation meetings within the different member
agencies beginning in May through the end of summer to introduce I-REN to jurisdictional staff, and
inform them of its goals. 
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
B.     Streetlight Program, Broadband, and Energy Resilience Activities Update
 
Daniel Soltero, WRCOG Program Manager, reported that WRCOG will be posting a Request for
Proposals in June 2023, seeking streetlight operation and maintenance providers for nine agencies and
approximately 36,000 streetlights, which would include outages, knockdowns, retrofits, and other
maintenance calls.  Staff is currently seeking more participants from member agencies to participate as
the Bid Review Committee.  There has been an increase in new streetlight installations, as various
members are adding them to the program; nominal increases to revenues are expected. 
 
Over the last year, WRCOG staff have been tracking broadband funding opportunities and participating
in broadband workshops to bring broadband to the region.  The Local Agency Technical Assistance
grant awarded five out of seven of the Riverside County applicants with a total of $2.2M.  Last Mile
Deployment will fund broadband infrastructure projects to connect unserved and underserved
communities with broadband service.  The CPUC released the Grant Application Tool and will begin
accepting applications in summer of 2023.  Member agencies can use the Local Jurisdiction Permitting
Playbook as a resource to help attract investment and deploy broadband. 
 
With regard to the Energy Resilience Plan 2.0, WRCOG was awarded $421K to study up to 10 sites
across the subregion for feasibility of microgrids and community resilience centers.  Public workshops
will be conducted to obtain community input. 
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
C.     Western Riverside County Clean Cities Coalition Activities Update

7



 
Taylor York, WRCOG Program Manager, reported that WRCOG is working to apply for funding for an
electric car share program and is currently seeking letters of support from eligible cities. There was a
Community Transportation Needs Assessment done in the Cities of Corona, Moreno Valley, and San
Jacinto, and deployment in those member agencies is currently underway. 
 
WRCOG was awarded a Community Engagement Liaison by the U.S. Department of Energy for two
years; the incumbent will focus on mobility-related challenges in EEJ communities.  
 
The second Clean Cities Coalition meeting was held on April 26, 2023, at Karma Automotive; staff
provided an overview of the Coalition's annual plan.  One-on-one meetings with each jurisdiction are
currently in progress, and the next Clean Cities Coalition meeting is scheduled for July 26, 2023, at a
location yet to be determined.
 
AB 1236 requires cities and counties to limit electric vehicle charging station project reviews to health
and safety requirements.  AB 970 refers to permit streamlining for vehicle charging stations.  If not
addressed within 60 days, the application will be automatically approved. 
 
WRCOG was also awarded a grant for the Houston to Los Angeles (H2LA) Hydrogen Corridor Planning
Project to fuel along I-10 from Houston to Los Angeles.  Staff will conduct direct engagement with cities
along the I-10 corridor beginning in July 2023.
 
Staff is currently looking for funding for the Western Riverside County Zero-Emissions Vehicle (ZEV)
Transition Tool.  They will work with member agencies to deploy chargers and vehicles, and create a
resource to help members plan for and transition to ZEV. 
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
D.     Southern California Edison 2023 Wildfire Mitigation Plan
 
Jeremy Goldman from Southern California Edison (SCE) reported that SCE covers 50,000 square miles
across southern and central California, with over 5M customer accounts, with nearly 27% of the service
area falling under high-risk of fire areas.  In the past two years, there has been a decrease in Public
Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS) activations, meaning a better quality of service, and less service
interruptions and de-energizations.
 
Eileen Bores from SCE stated that SCE will continue to harden the grid using advanced technologies
and deploying complementary mitigations to achieve the greatest risk reductions. This can include
replacing bare overhead powerlines with coated wire, to prevent arcing or sparking if it comes in contact
with anything that may land on it.  Inspections were conducted in high-risk areas by land and by air using
drones and helicopters to assess necessary maintenance for repair or replacement.  Vegetation
management such as tree pruning is also very important. 
 
Transformers are filled with a biodegradable fluid that helps insulate and cool them.  Remote controlled
automatic reclosers can switch off power when there is an issue and enable segmentation of circuits to
minimize customer impacts.

8



 
Mark Cloud from SCE added that there are pre-selected sites in various cities that have been designated
to provide affected customers with cooling centers with charging services, access to snacks, water, and
ice, and translation services in case of an outage.  For those that rely on medical devices, they are
placed on a priority list to make sure they are informed about any emergency.  An instant rebate option
for those medical devices and affordable batteries are available. 
 
There is an outage map available for the public to stay informed.  Texts are also sent to notify customers
of any emergency or outages.  Safety preparedness plans are available on the SCE website.
 
Committee member Jolene Walsh asked if the SCE weather stations are connected to the broader
California CIMIS stations or just used for SCE. 
 
Bob Sterns stated all of the weather stations and wildfire cameras are available on the SCE website.  All
links and resources will be provided to the Committee.
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
7.     REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
 
Chris Gray, WRCOG Deputy Executive Director, reminded the Committee of the upcoming General
Assembly on June 29, 2023, at Pechanga Resort Casino.  If anyone is having issues with registration,
please let WRCOG staff know as soon as possible.  He thanked sponsors for their support. 
 
8.     ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
 
There were no items for future agendas.
 
9.     GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS
 
There were no general announcements. 
 
10.   NEXT MEETING

The Technical Advisory Committee is dark during the month of July.  The next Technical Advisory
Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, August 17, 2023, at 9:30 a.m., in WRCOG's office
located at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200, Riverside. 
 
11.   ADJOURNMENT

The meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee adjourned at 10:24 a.m.

9



Item 7.A

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: Appointment to the Riverside County Emergency Medical Care Committee
Contact: Dr. Kurt Wilson, Executive Director, kwilson@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6701
Date: August 17, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Appoint one member of the Technical Advisory Committee as the WRCOG alternate
representative to the Riverside County Emergency Medical Care Committee.

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to request one alternate appointment to the Riverside County Emergency
Medical Care Committee (EMCC).

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #4 - Communicate proactively about the role and activities of the Council of Governments.

Background: 
Membership on the EMCC is determined by the Riverside County Board of Supervisors.  Consistent with
previous years, the EMCC has requested that the WRCOG's Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
recommend a TAC member to serve as an ex-officio member of the EMCC.  If approved by the Board of
Supervisors, that member will represent WRCOG on the EMCC.
 
The EMCC was established on October 15, 1985.  Article 3, Sections 1797.270 , 272, 274 and 276 of
Division 2.5 of the Health and Safety Code sets forth the responsibilities for the establishment and
function of the County's EMCC.  The composition of the EMCC is established by the attached County
Board Resolution 2001-358, dated December 18, 2001, and includes members appointed by the Board
of Supervisors.  The membership includes a representative nominated by WRCOG. 
 
The function of EMCC is to advise the Riverside County Board of Supervisors on all aspects of
emergency medical care within the County, to report on observations, and to provide recommendations
concerning the feasibility and content of emergency medical care programs within the County.  The
EMCC is comprised of 15 ex-officio members, one of which is a City Manager appointed from WRCOG. 
WRCOG is required to appoint one representative and one alternate to the EMCC.
 
The regular length of term is for a period of three years and members may serve a maximum of three
consecutive terms; the current term expires June 30, 2025.  Meetings are held four times a year.
 
Remaining meetings for the calendar year are scheduled as follows:

10

mailto:kwilson@wrcog.us


 
1. Wednesday, September 27, 2023, 9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Riverside University Health Systems Main Campus
26520 Cactus Ave., Moreno Valley, CA  92555 
Room:  Magnolia A-B

2. Tuesday, December 12, 2023, 9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
Ben Clark Training Center
16902 Bundy Ave,. Riverside, CA  92518
Classroom / Module B

Prior Action(s): 
May 19, 2022:  The Technical Advisory Committee appointed Jason Simpson, City of Lake Elsinore, as
the representative and Chris Mann, City of Canyon Lake, as the alternate member as the WRCOG
representatives to the Riverside County Emergency Medical Care Committee.

Fiscal Impact: 
This action is for an appointment to an outside committee and has no fiscal impact to WRCOG.

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - EMCC membership composition

11

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1994478/EMCC_membership_composition.pdf


13112



13213



13314



13415



13516



Item 7.B

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: AB 602 Compliance and Residential Trip Generation Studies Activities Update
Contact: Delia Votsch, Associate, Fehr & Peers, d.votsch@fehrandpeers.com, (949) 308-

6323
Date: August 17, 2023

 

 

 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file. 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to provide an overview of Assembly Bill (AB) 602 and present the findings of
the Residential Trip Generation Studies.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #5 - Develop projects and programs that improve infrastructure and sustainable development in our
subregion.

Background: 
Assembly Bill (AB) 602 (Grayson), effective January 1, 2022, added requirements related to
development fees.  Some components of the bill impact both jurisdictions and WRCOG, while other
components will only affect jurisdictions.  This staff report will briefly review AB 602, touching on the
general requirements and providing a detailed review on how WRCOG is ensuring compliance with a
specific provision of the bill.  This provision requires that local agencies calculate fees proportionately to
the square footage of the proposed units, and to have a valid method to establish a reasonable
relationship between the fee charged and the burden of the proposed development.
 
The Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Program is an impact fee program subject to AB 602
that is not currently based on square footage but instead charges a fee on a per unit basis.  This study
provides the preliminary analysis required to address the requirements of AB 602 and further explore if a
shift in TUMF collection from a per unit fee to a fee based on size (square footage) is appropriate.  
 
AB 602
 
There are three major components of AB 602: 
 

1. Permit Streamlining Act Changes:  A city or county is required to request from the developer the
total amount of fees and exactions associated with a project upon the issuance of a certificate of
occupancy or the final inspection, whichever occurs last, and to post this information on its internet

17

mailto:d.votsch@fehrandpeers.com


website.  
2. Direction to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD):  By

January 1, 2024, HCD is required to create an impact fee nexus study template that may be used
by local jurisdictions.  The template will include a method of calculating the feasibility of housing
being built with a given fee level.

3. Mitigation Fee Act Changes:  A local agency that conducts an impact fee nexus study is required
to follow specific standards and practices, including that 1) prior to the adoption of an associated
development fee, a Nexus Study be adopted, 2) the Nexus Study identify the existing level of
service for each public facility, identify the proposed new level of service, and include an
explanation of why the new level of service is necessary, and 3) if the Study is adopted after July
1, 2022, either calculate a fee levied or imposed on a housing development project proportionately
to the square footage of the proposed units, or make specified findings explaining why square
footage is not an appropriate metric to calculate the fees. 

 
The Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Program
 
The TUMF Program is an obligation that must be met on all new development in Western Riverside
County, except for some uses that are deemed exempt from paying TUMF by the TUMF Program.  So
where the local agency has determined that TUMF is due, a developer will need to pay their TUMF fees. 
The fee for residential uses are charged on a per units basis of unit type (single-family or multi-family). 
For example, a 1,500 square foot single-family dwelling unit is charged the same fee as a 4,500 square
foot single-family dwelling unit; similarly, an 800 square foot studio apartment unit is changed the same
fee as a 1,200 square foot three bedroom apartment unit.
 
Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential Trip Generation Studies
 
WRCOG worked with Fehr & Peers to review the relationship between travel behavior, residential unit
size, and other residential characteristics.  The study enabled WRCOG to research if there is a
correlation between residential unit size and trip generation.  The correlation will enable WRCOG to
determine if a size-based TUMF fee structure may encourage the development of smaller, more
affordable units.  The key findings for each of the studies is provided below and the full study is provided
as an attachment to this Staff Report.  
 
Single-Family Residential Trip Generation - Key Findings
 

Is home size a key predictor of residential vehicle trip generation?  Yes, for homes of 2,500 square
feet or less the trips increase with the larger home size.  After 2,500 square feet, the number of
trips stay constant with home size, all else being equal. 

 
Are there other characteristics that have a higher predictive relationship than home size?  Yes, the
trip generation increases with the total household population, average number of children, and
average number workers.  Home size accounts for approximately 50% of the increase in home
size for homes less than 2,500 square feet with the remaining 50% explained by multiple factors of
the people within the home.

 
Does the location (i.e., TUMF Zone) change the relationship of home size or the other
characteristics?  No, the home location may influence the size, number of people, or household
income, and/or the distance the trips travel, but does not influence the trips generated.

18



 
Are there recommended changes to the TUMF based on the findings?  If so, what is the potential
impact to the TUMF collection and home owners?  Yes, it is recommended that smaller homes pay
a fee based on home size.  The appropriate fee should be evaluated by the TUMF fee consultant
to determine the potential impact to fees collected compared to the current fee expectation. 
Smaller homes paying less could potentially make home ownership less expensive overall
compared to larger homes.

 
Multi-Family Residential Trip Generation - Key Findings
 

Are the size of the dwelling unit or number of bedrooms in a dwelling unit key predictors of
residential multi-family generation?  No, the size of the dwelling unit nor the number of bedrooms
in a dwelling unit are key predictors of trip generation. 

 
Are there other characteristics that have a higher predictive relationship than the number of
dwelling units?  No, the number of dwelling units has the highest predictive relationship.

 
Are there recommended changes to the TUMF Program or fee calculations based on the
findings?  If so, what is the potential impact to the TUMF collection process and to developers? 
No, it is not recommended that TUMF be updated from basing multi-family development fees on
number of dwelling units. 

Prior Action(s): 
June 8, 2023:  The Public Works Committee received and filed.
 
June 8, 2023:  The Planning Directors Committee received and filed.
 
February 8, 2023:  The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 
 
January 19, 2023: The Technical Advisory Committee received and filed.

December 8, 2022: The Public Works Committee received and filed.
 
December 8, 2022: The Planning Directors Committee received and filed.

Fiscal Impact: 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact.  The Residential Trip
Generation Studies were covered in Transportation and Planning Department activities that were
included in the Agency's adopted Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget under the Transportation Department. 
Additional analysis and presentations are covered in Transportation and Planning Department activities
that are included in the Agency's adopted Fiscal Year 2023/2024 budget under the Transportation
Department.  Note: Fiscal impacts will be further analyzed with additional review and consideration of
changes to the TUMF.

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - Single-Family Trip Generation Memo
Attachment 2 - Multifamily Trip Generation Memo

19

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2086526/Attachment_1_-_Single-Family_Trip_Generation_Memo.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2086527/Attachment_2_-_Multifamily_Trip_Generation_Memo.pdf


20



 

 

Attachment 

Single-Family Residential Trip 

Generation Study Memo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



 

Choose an item. 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  November 16, 2022 

To:  Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 

From:  Mike Wallace, Eleanor Hunts, and Jason Pack – Fehr & Peers 

Subject:  WRCOG Residential Trip Generation  
Contract No. 2022-65-1400-004 / Task Order No. 2022-65-1400-004-003 

OC22- 0864 

This memo summarizes the goals, data and analysis, key findings, and recommendations relating 
to the evaluation of vehicle trip generation and residential development characteristics. 
Specifically, this memo is intended to inform the Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) 
guidelines on the relationship between residential trip generation and home size (square footage) 
as prescribed in California Assembly Bill 602 (AB 602).  This draft memo will be followed-up with a 
phone call to discuss the recommendations and the memo will be revised and finalized based on 
the call. 

Key Findings 
Questions answered through the analysis and the findings are listed below. 

• Is home size a key predictor of residential vehicle trip generation? Yes, for homes of 
2,500 square feet or less the trips increase with the larger home size. After 2,500 
square feet the number of trips stay constant with home size, all else being equal. 

• Are there other characteristics that have a higher predictive relationship than home size? 
Yes, the trip generation increases with the total household population, average 
number of children, and average number workers.  Home size accounts for 
approximately 50% of the increase in home size for homes less than 2,500 square 
feet with the remaining 50% explained by multiple factors of the people within the 
home. 

• Does the location (i.e. TUMF zone) change the relationship of home size or the other 
characteristics? No, the home location may influence the size, number of people, or 
household income, and/or the distance the trips travel, but does not influence the 
trips generated.  

22



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 13  

• Are there recommended changes to the TUMF based on the findings? If so, what is the 
potential impact to the TUMF collection and home owners? Yes, it is recommended that 
smaller homes pay a fee based on home size. The appropriate fee should be 
evaluated by the TUMF fee consultant to determine the potential impact to fee 
collected compared to the current fee expectation. Smaller homes paying less could 
potentially make home ownership less expensive overall compared to larger homes. 

Data Collection 
This section describes the data that were used to evaluate the trip generation. Specifically, the 
identification and selection of study areas, method for obtaining and results of the travel activity, 
and collection of residential characteristics. 

Study Area Selection 

To determine the home characteristics that might influence trip generation, representative 
residential neighborhoods in each of the TUMF zones were identified. The criteria used for 
selecting neighborhoods included the following: 

• Residential land use could be isolated from other uses 

• Minimal cut through traffic 

• As close to Census Blocks or Block Groups as possible to obtain demographic information 

• Minimal construction activity that would change the number of units  

• Diverse home size, household income  
 
Based on local knowledge, aerial photos, Census geography, and home information from Zillow, 
WRCOG staff identified a preliminary list of potential study locations in each TUMF zone. Through 
discussions and review of each location, Fehr & Peers narrowed down the list of study locations to 
23 neighborhoods, shown on Figure 1.  

Travel Activity 

StreetLight Data from smart phones were collected at 23 residential neighborhoods shown on 
Figure 1 were collected for trips that started or ended within each neighborhood. This method 
excluded trips that cut through the neighborhood. To avoid holidays, vacations, and to reflect 
travel when school is in session, data from March 1st through April 30th and September 1st through 
October 31st for all weekdays in 2019 were collected to represent the average vehicle trips per day 
for all homes within each study area. 

Since StreetLight Data are based on location-based services (LBS) derived from cellular phone 
applications, 48-hour traffic counts were conducted at eight of the 23 study area locations as a 
point of comparison. The eight representative count locations were selected to have at least one 

23



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 13  

location in each TUMF zone, minimize the number of roadways accessing the land use, and to 
allow the most accurate representation of trips associated with the residential homes without 
capturing cut through traffic. The eight locations where 48-hour counts were collected are shown 
on Figure 2.  

As shown on Figure 3, the 48-hour traffic count variation from day to day and the StreetLight 
Data average are very similar, giving confidence that the StreetLight Data for all study areas would 
be representative. 

Residential Characteristics 

The number of homes and characteristics for the homes within each study area were obtained 
from multiple sources, as summarized in Table 1. To identify outliers and the range of values for 
each variable that would be used to estimate the trip generation, plots of each study location by 
TUMF zone were developed and are summarized below with reference to the appropriate figure.  

• Figure 4 – Median Square Footage: good distribution across study areas and within 
each TUMF zone 

• Figure 5 – Average Persons per Household: good distribution across study areas and 
within each TUMF zone 

• Figure 6 – Average Children per Household: good distribution across study areas and 
within each TUMF zone, including one study area that has very high children per 
household and another study area that has very low children per household 

• Figure 7 – Average Workers per Household: good distribution across study areas and 
within each TUMF zone 

• Figure 8 – Median Cost per Square Foot: good distribution across study areas and 
within each TUMF zone 

Based on the review of each variable, the range across the study areas and within each TUMF 
zone are appropriate for use in the trip generation analysis.  

Trip Generation Results 
The StreetLight Data daily vehicle trips were used to visually display the relationship of each home 
characteristic for each study area and within each TUMF zone. The appropriate figure number and 
conclusion for the relationship are listed below. 

• Figure 9 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Median Square Footage: slight increase in vehicle 
trips as median square footage increases 

• Figure 10 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Average Persons per Household: slight increase in 
vehicle trips as total number of people per household increases 

24



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 13  

• Figure 11 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Average Children per Household: slight increase in 
vehicle trips as average number of children per household increases 

• Figure 12 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Average Workers per Household: slight increase in 
vehicle trips as average number of workers per household increases 

• Figure 13 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Median Cost per Square Foot: no clear relationship 
between average number of workers and trip generation 

 
In addition to visual representations of the data, statistical analysis was performed to obtain the 
correlation between the variables to daily vehicle trips and to determine the regression equations. 

Figure 16 – Correlation Matrix for All Variables: the correlation values in the green box for 
average and median home size of 0.7 indicate a strong positive correlation and mean as home 
size increases the number of trips increase. The correlation value of 0.7 results in an R-square of 
0.49, meaning nearly half of the increase in trip generation is related to home size. 

Based on Figures 10 and 11, the relationship between trip generation appeared to be linear, with 
the relationship possibly changing around 2,500 square feet. The linear regression analysis of 
average home size was performed for all home sizes, homes 2,500 square feet or smaller, and 
homes larger than 2,500 square feet. The results of the analysis are summarized in Table 2. The 
results show for home sizes of 2,500 square feet or less, the influence of the home size 
(represented by the coefficient) is nearly double that when all home sizes are included in the 
regression. The nearly zero coefficient and very high constant for the regression of home sizes 
above 2.500 square feet indicate that the trip generation is nearly constant for homes above 2,500 
square feet.  

Recommendations and Next Steps 
Although home characteristics other than square footage have a slight increase in trip generation, 
the ability to forecast or control all of the characteristics other than home square footage is very 
difficult. Based on the results of trip generation and discussions with WRCOG regarding the 
feasible size of homes being constructed in the region, WRCOG will work with the TUMF fee 
consultant to identify and recommend appropriate fee adjustments based on square footage.  

25



BLM

Cleveland NF

San Jacinto
Wildlife
Area

ANAHEIM

BANNING
BEAUMONT

CALIMESA

CANYON LAKE

CHINO

CHINO
HILLS

CORONA

EASTVALE

HEMET

IRVINE

JURUPA VALLEY

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA NIGUEL

LAKE ELSINORELAKE FOREST
MENIFEE

MISSION
VIEJO

MORENO VALLEY

MURRIETA

NORCO

ONTARIO

PERRIS

RANCHO SANTA
MARGARITA

RIVERSIDE

SAN JACINTO

WILDOMAR

YORBA LINDA

·243

·241

·91

·71

·83

·74

·60

·79

%&215

!"5

!"10

!"15

1

2

3 4
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

21
22

23

20

StreetLight Data Collection Locations

Study Location by TUMF Zone

Central

Hemet/San Jacinto

Northwest

Pass

Southwest

City Boundaries

Figure 1

26



BLM

Cleveland NF

San Jacinto
Wildlife
Area

ANAHEIM

BANNING
BEAUMONT

CALIMESA

CANYON LAKE

CHINO

CHINO
HILLS

CORONA

EASTVALE

HEMET

IRVINE

JURUPA VALLEY

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA NIGUEL

LAKE ELSINORELAKE FOREST
MENIFEE

MISSION
VIEJO

MORENO VALLEY

MURRIETA

NORCO

ONTARIO

PERRIS

RANCHO SANTA
MARGARITA

RIVERSIDE

SAN JACINTO

WILDOMAR

YORBA LINDA

·243

·241

·91

·71

·83

·74

·60

·79

%&215

!"5

!"10

!"15

1
6

11

14

15

18

23

20

Traffic Count Data Collection Locations

Study Location by TUMF Zone

Central

Hemet/San Jacinto

Northwest

Pass

Southwest

City Boundaries

Figure 2

27



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 7 of 13  

Figure 3 – Comparison of Individual Traffic Counts and StreetLight Data Average 

 

Note: Red and green are the two days of manual count collection and blue are the StreetLight Data average. The BG 
number corresponds to the number on Figure 2. 

Figure 4 – Median Square Footage 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 8 of 13  

Figure 5 – Average Persons per Household 

 
 
 
Figure 6 – Average Children per Household 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 9 of 13  

 
Figure 7 – Average Workers per Household 

 
 
 

Figure 8 – Median Cost per Square Foot 
 

 
 
  

30



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 10 of 13  

Figure 9 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Median Square Footage 

 
 
 
Figure 10 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Average Persons per Household 

 
  

31



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 11 of 13  

Figure 11 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Average Children per Household 

 
 
 
Figure 12 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Average Workers per Household 

 
  

32



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 12 of 13  

Figure 13 – Daily Vehicle Trips per Median Cost per Square Foot 
 

 
 
Figure 14 – Correlation Matrix for All Variables 
 

 
 
 
 

33



Suzanne Peterson, Christopher Gray, and Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 
November 16, 2022 
Page 13 of 13  

Table 1:  Residential Home Data and Sources 

Value Source 

Median Home Size Zillow 

Average Home Rooms Zillow 

Average Household Population ACS 5 year and 1 year 

Average Number of Children ACS 5 year and 1 year 

Average Number of Workers ACS 5 year and 1 year 

TUMF Zone WRCOG 

Average Household Income ACS 5 year and 1 year 
 

Table 2:  Daily Total Vehicle Trip Regression Equation Summary 

Home Size Variable Coefficient Constant R-Squared 

All home sizes 

Median Home Size (KSF) 2.26 4.22 0.507 

Homes 2.5 KSF or smaller 

Median Home Size (KSF) 4.11 1.22 0.553 

Homes over 2.5 KSF 

Median Home Size (KSF) -0.3 11.57 0.007 
Notes: KSF= Thousand Square Feet 
 
 
Regression Equations 
All home sizes. 
Daily total vehicle trips = 2.26 * Median Home Size in Thousand Square Feet + 4.22 
 
Homes l 2.50 thousand square feet or less. 
Daily total vehicle trips = 4.11 * Median Home Size in Thousand Square Feet + 1.22 
 
Homes more than 2.50 thousand square feet. 
Daily total vehicle trips = -0.3 * Median Home Size in Thousand Square Feet + 11.57 
 

34



 

 

Attachment 

Multi-Family Residential Trip  

Generation Study Memo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 

3750 University Avenue | Suite 225 | Riverside, CA 92501 | (951) 274-4800 | Fax (951) 684-4324   
www.fehrandpeers.com 

Memorandum 
 

Date:  May 12, 2023 

To:  Christopher Gray - WRCOG 
Chris Tzeng – WRCOG 

From:  Jason D. Pack, P.E. 
Delia Votsch, P.E.  
Raymond Poss 

Subject:  DRAFT TUMF Multifamily Residential Counts and Trip Generation 
Task Order No. 2022-65-1400-004-007 

OC23-0955 

This memorandum summarizes the goals, data collection and analyses, key findings, and 
recommendations regarding the evaluation of multifamily development characteristics and trip 
generation. This memo is intended to inform the Western Riverside Council of Governments 
(WRCOG) Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) guidelines on the relationship between 
multifamily trip generation, number of bedrooms per dwelling unit, and average size of dwelling 
unit.  

Key Findings 

Questions answered through the data analyses and findings are listed below. 

 Are the size of the dwelling unit or number of bedrooms in a dwelling unit key predictors 
of residential multifamily trip generation? No, the size of dwelling unit nor the number 
of bedrooms in a dwelling unit are key predicters of trip generation. 

 Are there other characteristics that have a higher predictive relationship than the number 
of dwelling units? No, the number of dwelling units has the highest predictive 
relationship. 

 Are there recommended changes to the TUMF program or fee calculations based on the 
findings? If so, what is the potential impact to the TUMF collection process and to 
developers? No, it is not recommended that TUMF be updated from basing 
multifamily development fees on number of dwelling units. 

36



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 2 of 14  

 

Background 

Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) provides local roadway funding in part 
through collection of fees through the Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) program as 
part of new developments. These fees vary based on the level of impact the new development will 
have on traffic as determined by the characteristics of the development. The impact fee for 
multifamily residential developments is currently determined by the number of dwelling units 
(DUs).  

As required by new state legislature (AB-602), agencies are required to account for the size of the 
dwelling unit when developing impact fees. As such, Fehr & Peers was contracted to evaluate the 
relationship between trips generated by multifamily apartment complexes to determine if 
attributes other than number of dwelling units, including number bedrooms per dwelling unit and 
average size of dwelling unit, significantly affect trip generation. 

Data Collection 

This section describes the data used to evaluate multifamily trip generation, including the 
selection of locations and methods for collecting trip data, apartment characteristics, and regional 
Census data.  

Study Selection Area 

To evaluate the effect of dwelling unit size and number of dwelling unit bedrooms on multifamily 
trip generation, the following criteria were used to select the apartment complexes within 
Western Riverside County: 

 Minimum of one complex per TUMF Zone (five zones total) 
 Complexes not within a Transit Priority Area (TPA) 
 Complexes not near a college or university 

Through discussions and review of each location with WRCOG, Fehr & Peers narrowed the study 
locations to 12 multifamily apartment complexes as shown on Figure 1. 

Travel Activity 

Trips were observed at each of the 12 complexes by collecting vehicle counts during typical 
weekdays at each driveway over a three-day period. Trip observations for each complex were 
averaged over the three-day period and summarized below in Table 1 for Daily, AM Peak Period, 
and PM Peak Period counts. Raw data counts taken over the three-day period can be found 
Appendix A. 

37



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

WRCOG TUMF Multifamily Trip Generation Study Sites

! Study Locations

TUMF Zone Boundary

Figure 1

38



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 4 of 14  

Table 1: Multifamily Complex Trip Observations 

Study 
Site # 

Location Name 
Daily Trips AM Peak PM Peak 

Trips % In % Out 
Trip 
Rate 

In % Out % 
Trip 
Rate 

In % Out % 

1 
Oakwood 

Apartments 
2,089 50% 50% 168 40% 60% 170 56% 44% 

2 
Springbrook Park 

Apartments 
841 50% 50% 68 34% 66% 69 58% 42% 

3 
Vista Springs 
Apartments 

1,117 49% 51% 106 36% 64% 82 55% 45% 

4 
Vesada 

Apartment 
Homes 

1,625 50% 50% 126 35% 65% 126 62% 38% 

5 
Morning Ridge 

Apartments 1,130 51% 49% 88 30% 70% 102 59% 41% 

6 
Stonegate 

Apartments 
952 56% 44% 67 42% 58% 81 64% 36% 

7 
River's Edge 
Apartment 

Homes 
1,045 50% 50% 93 34% 66% 91 57% 43% 

8 
Mayberry Colony 

Apartments 
616 50% 50% 49 39% 61% 54 52% 48% 

9 
Summit Ridge 
Apartments 

777 50% 50% 67 39% 61% 57 54% 46% 

10 
Riverdale 

Apartments 
737 50% 50% 65 32% 68% 67 57% 43% 

11 
Parkridge 
Meadows 

Apartments 
744 50% 50% 58 34% 66% 54 63% 37% 

12 
Hunt Club 

Apartments 1,422 51% 49% 143 36% 64% 106 60% 40% 

Source: Fehr & Peers (2023) 

 

 

 

39



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 5 of 14  

Residential Characteristics 

Apartment characteristics, listed below, were obtained from a variety of sources, including 
conversations with apartment leasing agents, property webpages, Census data, Zillow.com, and 
the Assessor’s Office of Riverside County web page.  

 Number of dwelling units 
 Number of apartment styles (i.e., number of one-bedroom units, two-bedroom units, etc.) 
 Average size (square footage) of dwelling units 
 Average number of bedrooms per dwelling unit 
 Median monthly household income by Census Tract 
 Average number of persons per household by Census Tract 
 Proximity to nearest public school 

The average size of each dwelling unit was calculated by dividing the total size of all combined 
dwelling units by the total number of dwelling units. Similarly, the average number of bedrooms 
per dwelling unit were calculated by dividing the total number of bedrooms by the number of 
dwelling units. These apartment characteristics are shown below in Table 2. Specific information 
related to each apartment complex are provided in Appendix B.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 6 of 14  

Table 2: Apartment Characteristics 

Study 
Site # 

Location Name 
# of 
DUs 

Average 
Size of DU 

(Sq. Ft.) 

Average 
Number of 
Bedrooms 

Median 
Monthly 

Household 
Income  

(Dollars) 

Average # 
of Persons 

per 
Household  

Proximity 
to 

Nearest 
School 

(Mi) 

1 Oakwood 
Apartments 

241 1,040 3.0 $65,240 3.92 0.2 

2 Springbrook Park 
Apartments 

112 955 2.0 $77,148 3.6 0.5 

3 Vista Springs 
Apartments 

212 822 1.5 $74,333 3.3 0.7 

4 Vesada Apartment 
Homes 

261 938 1.7 $79,199 4.53 1.1 

5 Morning Ridge 
Apartments 

200 850 1.6 $63,279 2.73 0.6 

6 Stonegate 
Apartments 

160 802 1.5 $68,250 3.14 0.7 

7 River's Edge 
Apartment Homes 

184 918 1.5 $78,222 3.74 0.4 

8 Mayberry Colony 
Apartments 

89 896 1.6 $51,653 3.71 0.7 

9 Summit Ridge 
Apartments 

80 529 2.5 $43,100 3.47 0.3 

10 Riverdale 
Apartments 

96 1,015 2.6 $87,532 4.33 0.3 

11 
Parkridge 
Meadows 

Apartments 
88 771 2.0 $74,886 3.53 0.1 

12 
Hunt Club 

Apartments 
203 962 2.0 $58,200 4.5 0.8 

Sources: Fehr & Peers (2023), U.S. Census Bureau 5-Year American Community Survey (2016-2021), Zillow.com (2023), 
Riverside County Assessor (2023) 

 

41



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 7 of 14  

Trip Generation Analysis 

Using the data described above, a statistical analysis, including a regression and correlation 
assessment, was performed to evaluate if a statistically significant relationship exists between 
multifamily trip generation and the following variables to determine if an update to the 
development fee calculation was justified. 

 Number of dwelling units 
 Average size of dwelling units 
 Average number of bedrooms per dwelling unit 
 Median monthly income 
 Average number of persons per household 
 Proximity to nearest public school 

Correlation Analysis 

A correlation analysis was also performed to determine if a one-to-one relationship exists 
between daily trip generation and an apartment characteristic listed above. Figure 2, below, 
shows the results of the correlation analysis, with darker green cells representing a stronger, 
positive correlation. 

The correlation analysis indicates that daily trip generation has a strong, positive correlation 
with the number of dwelling units and a moderate, positive correlation with average size of 
dwelling unit. All other variables are indicated to have a weak or very weak positive correlation 
with trip generation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 8 of 14  

Figure 2: Trip Generation Correlation Matrix  

  
Total 

Vehicles 
 # of 
DUs 

Average # 
of 

Bedrooms 
per DU 

Average 
DU Size 
(Sq. Ft.) 

Median 
Monthly 
Income 

Average 
Household 

Size 

Proximity 
to 

Nearest 
School 

Total 
Vehicles 

1.00 0.87 0.29 0.46 0.06 0.34 0.21 

 # of DUs 0.87 1.00 -0.17 0.43 0.20 0.18 0.51 

Average # 
of 

Bedrooms 
per DU 

0.29 -0.17 1.00 0.13 -0.09 0.36 -0.60 

Average 
DU Size 
(Sq. Ft.) 

0.46 0.43 0.13 1.00 0.55 0.51 0.16 

Median 
Monthly 
Income 

0.06 0.20 -0.09 0.55 1.00 0.25 -0.02 

Average 
Household 

Size 
0.34 0.18 0.36 0.51 0.25 1.00 0.21 

Proximity 
to Nearest 

School 
0.21 0.51 -0.60 0.16 -0.02 0.21 1.00 

Source: Fehr & Peers (2023) 

Regression Analysis 

An ordinary least squares regression at a 95% confidence interval was performed on the above 
variables against daily trip generation to screen out variables that yielded statistically insignificant 
results. The results of the first regression are shown in Table 3. 

 

 

43



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 9 of 14  

Table 3: Regression Results 

Variable P-Value1 Statistically Significant 

Number of dwelling units <0.05 Yes 

Average size (square footage) of 
dwelling units 

>0.05 No 

Average number of bedrooms per 
dwelling unit 

<0.05 
Yes 

Median monthly household 
income 

>0.05 
No 

Average number of persons per 
household 

>0.05 
No 

Proximity to nearest public school >0.05 No 

Source: Fehr & Peers (2023) 
1. P-Values < 0.05 are considered statistically significant. P-Values > 0.05 are considered statistically insignificant. 

A subsequent regression was run with the least statistically significant (highest P-value) variable 
removed. This process was repeated until all remaining variables yielded statistically significant P-
values (less than 0.05), resulting in the number of dwelling units and average size of dwelling unit 
as the remaining variables. The P-Values for these variables are shown below in Table 4.  

Table 4: Filtered Regression Results 

Variable P-Value1 Statistically Significant 

Number of dwelling units 4.8x10-07 Yes 

Average size (square footage) of 
dwelling units 

0.0002 
Yes 

Source: Fehr & Peers (2023) 
1. P-Values < 0.05 are considered statistically significant. P-Values > 0.05 are considered statistically insignificant. 

The regression analysis indicates that number of dwelling units and average size of dwelling 
unit are statistically significant predictors of multifamily trip generation. 

To validate these results, a forward stepwise regression was also completed. A forward stepwise 
regression is completed by beginning with no variables in the model, and then adding them one 
at a time based on which has the smallest p-value when tested one at a time. This isolates any 
possible relationships between the variables and further helps confirm if the vehicle trip rate has a 
statistically valid correlation to the variables tested.   

 

44



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 10 of 14  

Table 5: Forward Stepwise Regression Results 

Variable 
Relationship Rank1 P-Value2 Statistically 

Significant 

Average size (square footage) of dwelling units 4 0.377 Yes 

Average number of bedrooms per dwelling unit 1 0.0008 No 

Median monthly household income 3 0.249 Yes 

Average number of persons per household 5 0.509 Yes 

Proximity to nearest public school 2 0.0239 No 

Source: Fehr & Peers (2023) 
1. Relationship rank indicates which variable has the strongest correlation with daily vehicle trip rate. 
2. P-Values < 0.05 are considered statistically significant. P-Values > 0.05 are considered statistically insignificant. 

As noted in Table 5, the variables with the strongest relationship to daily vehicle trip rate (number 
of bedrooms and distance to nearest school) are not statistically significant.  

Trip Generation Results 

In both the regression and correlation analyses, the number of dwelling units was found to be the 
strongest predictor of daily trip generation. All other variables had positive but weaker 
correlations to daily trip generation, and none were found to be statistically significant predictors 
of multifamily daily trip generation under both regression analyses.  

Table 6: Summary of Trip Generation Results 

Variable 
Overall Relationship 

Ranking1 

Statistically Significant 

Filtered Regression Forward Regression 

Number of Dwelling Units 1 Yes Yes 

Average number of bedrooms 
per dwelling unit 

2 Yes No 

Proximity to nearest public school 3 No No 

Average size (square footage) of 
dwelling units 

4 No Yes 

Average number of persons per 
household 

5 No Yes 

Median monthly household 
income 

6 No Yes 

Source: Fehr & Peers (2023) 
1. Overall relationship rank indicates which variable has the strongest relationship with daily vehicle trip rate under 

the correlation and forward stepwise regression analyses.  

 

45



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 
May 12, 2023 
Page 11 of 14  

Recommendations and Next Steps   

The results of this statistical analysis indicate that the best predictor of trip generation for 
multifamily apartment complexes in Western Riverside County is the number of dwelling units 
(the current basis for development fee calculation). Although other variables showed a positive 
correlation with trip generation, none yielded as strong a relationship. Based on this statistical 
analysis, it is not recommended that these other variables be incorporated into the TUMF 
program.  

46



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 

May 2, 2023 

Page 11 of 13  

Appendix A: Three-Day Trip 
Observations 

  

47



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS79 Southern Dwy east of Perris.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 1 0 1 0 0 2
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 0 1 0 0 0 1
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 0 2 0 0 0 2
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 2 2 0 0 0 4
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:00 3 1 0 0 0 4
7:15 0 3 0 0 0 3 19:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:30 2 1 0 0 0 3 21:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:45 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 1 1 0 0 0 2 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 17 5 0 0 0 22 TOTAL 29 6 1 0 0 36

AM PEAK HOUR 9:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 7 AM PEAK VOLUME 9

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 46 11 1 0 0 58
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 79.3% 19.0% 1.7% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 1 3 0 0 0 4 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 5 0 0 0 0 5 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 1 - Oakwood Apartments

48



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS79 Southern Dwy east of Perris.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 1 0 1 0 0 2
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 0 1 0 0 0 1
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 0 2 0 0 0 2
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 1 1 0 0 0 2
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 3 1 0 0 0 4
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:00 2 1 0 0 0 3
7:15 0 3 0 0 0 3 19:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
7:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:30 2 1 0 0 0 3 21:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:45 1 0 0 0 0 1

10:00 1 1 0 0 0 2 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 19 5 0 0 0 24 TOTAL 32 6 1 0 0 39

AM PEAK HOUR 9:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 7 AM PEAK VOLUME 10

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 51 11 1 0 0 63
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 81.0% 17.5% 1.6% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 1 3 0 0 0 4 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 6 0 0 0 0 6 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 1 - Oakwood Apartments

49



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS80 Northern Dwy east of Perris.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 12:00 35 0 0 0 0 35
0:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 12:15 42 1 0 0 0 43
0:30 20 0 0 0 0 20 12:30 36 1 1 0 0 38
0:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 12:45 58 0 0 0 0 58
1:00 16 0 0 0 0 16 13:00 44 0 0 0 0 44
1:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:15 39 1 0 0 0 40
1:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:30 38 0 0 0 0 38
1:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 13:45 55 0 0 0 0 55
2:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 14:00 44 0 0 0 0 44
2:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:15 65 0 0 0 0 65
2:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:30 51 0 0 0 0 51
2:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 14:45 63 0 0 0 0 63
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 53 0 0 0 0 53
3:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:15 64 2 0 0 0 66
3:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:30 66 2 0 0 0 68
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 75 1 0 0 0 76
4:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 16:00 73 0 0 0 0 73
4:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 16:15 67 0 0 0 0 67
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 62 0 0 0 0 62
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 80 0 0 0 0 80
5:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 17:00 48 2 0 0 0 50
5:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:15 68 0 0 0 0 68
5:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:30 53 0 0 0 0 53
5:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 17:45 60 0 0 0 0 60
6:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 18:00 79 0 0 0 0 79
6:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 18:15 70 0 0 0 0 70
6:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:30 60 0 0 0 0 60
6:45 13 0 0 0 0 13 18:45 54 0 0 0 0 54
7:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 19:00 53 0 0 0 0 53
7:15 29 0 0 0 0 29 19:15 43 0 0 0 0 43
7:30 48 0 0 0 0 48 19:30 38 0 0 0 0 38
7:45 70 0 0 0 0 70 19:45 35 0 0 0 0 35
8:00 52 0 0 0 0 52 20:00 48 0 0 0 0 48
8:15 27 0 0 0 0 27 20:15 38 0 0 0 0 38
8:30 52 0 0 0 0 52 20:30 38 0 0 0 0 38
8:45 36 0 1 0 0 37 20:45 32 0 0 0 0 32
9:00 21 1 0 0 0 22 21:00 47 0 0 0 0 47
9:15 19 1 0 0 0 20 21:15 36 0 0 0 0 36
9:30 22 0 0 0 0 22 21:30 35 0 0 0 0 35
9:45 29 1 0 0 0 30 21:45 25 0 0 0 0 25

10:00 28 1 0 0 0 29 22:00 35 0 0 0 0 35
10:15 24 0 0 0 0 24 22:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
10:30 24 0 0 0 0 24 22:30 23 0 0 0 0 23
10:45 35 0 0 0 0 35 22:45 21 0 0 0 0 21
11:00 31 0 0 0 0 31 23:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
11:15 16 0 0 0 0 16 23:15 30 0 0 0 0 30
11:30 20 0 0 0 0 20 23:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:45 29 3 0 0 0 32 23:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
TOTAL 815 7 1 0 0 823 TOTAL 2,246 10 1 0 0 2,257

AM PEAK HOUR 7:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 201 AM PEAK VOLUME 284

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 3,061 17 2 0 0 3,080
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.4% 0.6% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 201 0 0 0 0 201 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 282 0 0 0 0 282 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 1 - Oakwood Apartments

50



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS80 Northern Dwy east of Perris.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 5 1 0 0 0 6 12:00 59 1 0 0 0 60
0:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 12:15 38 2 0 0 0 40
0:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 12:30 34 0 0 0 0 34
0:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 12:45 32 1 0 0 0 33
1:00 5 1 0 0 0 6 13:00 40 0 0 0 0 40
1:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 13:15 47 0 1 0 0 48
1:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:30 51 1 0 0 0 52
1:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:45 46 0 0 0 0 46
2:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:00 60 0 0 0 0 60
2:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:15 49 0 0 0 0 49
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 52 0 0 0 0 52
2:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:45 48 0 0 0 0 48
3:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:00 57 0 0 0 0 57
3:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:15 56 0 0 0 0 56
3:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:30 61 1 0 0 0 62
3:45 10 0 0 0 0 10 15:45 37 0 0 0 0 37
4:00 14 0 0 0 0 14 16:00 71 0 0 0 0 71
4:15 17 0 0 0 0 17 16:15 39 0 0 0 0 39
4:30 20 0 0 0 0 20 16:30 53 1 0 0 0 54
4:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 16:45 53 0 0 0 0 53
5:00 15 0 0 0 0 15 17:00 63 0 0 0 0 63
5:15 19 0 0 0 0 19 17:15 46 1 0 0 0 47
5:30 21 0 0 0 0 21 17:30 48 0 0 0 0 48
5:45 23 0 0 0 0 23 17:45 42 0 0 0 0 42
6:00 28 0 0 0 0 28 18:00 48 0 0 0 0 48
6:15 29 0 0 0 0 29 18:15 57 0 0 0 0 57
6:30 27 0 0 0 0 27 18:30 30 0 0 0 0 30
6:45 38 0 0 0 0 38 18:45 33 0 0 0 0 33
7:00 48 0 0 0 0 48 19:00 41 0 0 0 0 41
7:15 79 0 0 0 0 79 19:15 20 0 0 0 0 20
7:30 82 0 0 0 0 82 19:30 32 1 0 0 0 33
7:45 78 0 0 0 0 78 19:45 33 0 0 0 0 33
8:00 57 0 0 0 0 57 20:00 33 0 0 0 0 33
8:15 61 0 0 0 0 61 20:15 31 0 0 0 0 31
8:30 36 1 0 0 0 37 20:30 32 1 0 0 0 33
8:45 34 0 0 0 0 34 20:45 35 0 0 0 0 35
9:00 27 0 0 0 0 27 21:00 29 0 0 0 0 29
9:15 33 0 0 0 0 33 21:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
9:30 27 2 1 0 0 30 21:30 28 0 0 0 0 28
9:45 44 1 0 0 0 45 21:45 24 0 0 0 0 24

10:00 28 1 0 0 0 29 22:00 19 0 0 0 0 19
10:15 39 1 0 0 0 40 22:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
10:30 27 2 0 0 0 29 22:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
10:45 32 0 0 0 0 32 22:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
11:00 36 0 0 0 0 36 23:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
11:15 37 0 0 0 0 37 23:15 19 0 0 0 0 19
11:30 26 0 0 0 0 26 23:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
11:45 39 1 0 0 0 40 23:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
TOTAL 1,208 11 1 0 0 1,220 TOTAL 1,833 10 1 0 0 1,844

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 296 AM PEAK VOLUME 226

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 3,041 21 2 0 0 3,064
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.2% 0.7% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 296 0 0 0 0 296 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 216 1 0 0 0 217 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 1 - Oakwood Apartments

51



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS75 Eastern Dwy south of Orange.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 7 1 0 0 0 8
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:15 6 1 0 0 0 7
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 17 1 0 0 0 18
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
3:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:45 22 0 0 0 0 22
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 9 2 0 0 0 11
4:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
5:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:15 1 3 0 0 0 4 18:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:45 2 1 0 0 0 3 18:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:00 4 2 0 0 0 6 19:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:15 4 3 0 0 0 7 19:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:45 2 1 0 0 0 3 21:45 8 0 0 0 0 8

10:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:15 6 1 0 0 0 7 22:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 4 1 0 0 0 5 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 2 0 1 0 0 3 23:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 10 1 1 0 0 12 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 128 13 2 0 0 143 TOTAL 385 5 0 0 0 390

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 29 AM PEAK VOLUME 59

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 513 18 2 0 0 533
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 96.2% 3.4% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 29 0 0 0 0 29 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 50 0 0 0 0 50 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 2 - Springbrook Park Apartments

52



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS75 Eastern Dwy south of Orange.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 8 1 0 0 0 9
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 6 2 1 0 0 9
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
2:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 14:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 16:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
4:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 16:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
5:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
5:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 18:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:15 12 0 0 0 0 12 19:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:30 19 0 1 0 0 20 19:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:45 19 0 0 0 0 19 19:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:30 4 0 1 0 0 5 20:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:45 5 0 0 0 0 5

10:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:00 11 1 0 0 0 12 23:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 4 1 0 0 0 5 23:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 234 2 2 0 0 238 TOTAL 306 3 1 0 0 310

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 58 AM PEAK VOLUME 50

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 540 5 3 0 0 548
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.5% 0.9% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 57 0 1 0 0 58 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 50 0 0 0 0 50 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 2 - Springbrook Park Apartments

53



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS76 Western Dwy south of Orange.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 7 1 0 0 0 8
0:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 12 2 1 0 0 15
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 11 1 0 0 0 12
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 14:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 13 1 0 0 0 14
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
4:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:30 24 0 0 0 0 24
5:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
6:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:00 20 0 0 0 0 20
6:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
7:15 2 0 1 0 0 3 19:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 15 0 0 0 0 15 19:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
8:15 6 0 1 0 0 7 20:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
8:30 10 0 0 0 0 10 20:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 21:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
9:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
9:30 3 1 0 0 0 4 21:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:45 15 0 0 0 0 15

10:00 10 1 0 0 0 11 22:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
10:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:30 2 1 0 0 0 3 23:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
TOTAL 174 3 2 0 0 179 TOTAL 531 5 1 0 0 537

AM PEAK HOUR 7:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 41 AM PEAK VOLUME 76

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 705 8 3 0 0 716
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.5% 1.1% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 40 0 1 0 0 41 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 70 0 0 0 0 70 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 2 - Springbrook Park Apartments

54



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS76 Western Dwy south of Orange.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 6 0 1 0 0 7
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 6 1 0 0 0 7
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 11 1 0 0 0 12
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 20 0 0 0 0 20
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 11 2 0 0 0 13
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 21 0 0 0 0 21
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 15:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:00 9 1 0 0 0 10
4:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 16:15 8 1 0 0 0 9
4:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 16:30 8 1 0 0 0 9
4:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 16:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
5:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:15 5 3 0 0 0 8 18:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:30 13 0 0 0 0 13 18:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:00 7 3 0 0 0 10 19:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:15 17 3 0 0 0 20 19:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:30 18 0 0 0 0 18 19:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:45 24 0 0 0 0 24 19:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:00 16 0 0 0 0 16 20:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:15 12 0 0 0 0 12 20:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:30 17 0 0 0 0 17 20:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
8:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 20:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:30 10 1 0 0 0 11 21:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:45 1 1 0 0 0 2 21:45 4 0 0 0 0 4

10:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 22:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
10:15 12 2 0 0 0 14 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 23:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:30 5 0 1 0 0 6 23:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:45 8 1 0 0 0 9 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 314 14 1 0 0 329 TOTAL 384 7 1 0 0 392

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 1:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 78 AM PEAK VOLUME 56

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 698 21 2 0 0 721
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 96.8% 2.9% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 75 3 0 0 0 78 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 35 3 0 0 0 38 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 2 - Springbrook Park Apartments

55



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS77 Dwy east of Clark

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
0:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
0:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 12:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 12 0 1 0 0 13
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
4:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
5:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
6:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 19:15 17 0 0 0 0 17
7:30 18 0 0 0 0 18 19:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:45 16 0 0 0 0 16 19:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 20:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
8:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 20:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
8:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
9:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
9:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:45 8 0 0 0 0 8

10:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 22:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
10:15 4 1 0 0 0 5 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 3 1 0 0 0 4 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
TOTAL 169 2 0 0 0 171 TOTAL 438 0 1 0 0 439

AM PEAK HOUR 7:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 54 AM PEAK VOLUME 53

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 607 2 1 0 0 610
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.5% 0.3% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 54 0 0 0 0 54 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 53 0 0 0 0 53 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 3 - Vista Springs Apartments

56



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS77 Dwy east of Clark

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
0:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 10 1 0 0 0 11
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
1:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:30 16 0 1 0 0 17
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 19 0 0 0 0 19
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 19 0 0 0 0 19
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
3:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 16:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 16:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 17:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 18:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:30 14 0 0 0 0 14 18:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:45 19 1 0 0 0 20
7:00 23 0 0 0 0 23 19:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:15 26 0 0 0 0 26 19:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:30 27 0 0 0 0 27 19:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:45 31 0 0 0 0 31 19:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:00 31 0 0 0 0 31 20:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:15 21 0 0 0 0 21 20:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:30 15 0 0 0 0 15 20:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 20:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 21:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 21:45 7 0 0 0 0 7

10:00 13 1 0 0 0 14 22:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
10:15 4 1 0 0 0 5 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 6 1 0 0 0 7 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 6 1 0 0 0 7 23:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 398 4 0 0 0 402 TOTAL 418 2 1 0 0 421

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 1:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 115 AM PEAK VOLUME 73

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 816 6 1 0 0 823
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.1% 0.7% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 115 0 0 0 0 115 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 42 0 0 0 0 42 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 3 - Vista Springs Apartments

57



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS78 Dwy north of Box Springs

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 12:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 12:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 17 1 1 0 0 19
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 12 1 0 0 0 13
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
1:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:15 16 0 1 0 0 17
1:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:30 9 1 0 0 0 10
1:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 13:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:00 20 0 0 0 0 20
2:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:15 22 0 0 0 0 22
2:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:30 20 0 0 0 0 20
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 29 0 0 0 0 29
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 27 0 0 0 0 27
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:00 19 0 0 0 0 19
4:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 26 0 0 0 0 26
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:00 23 0 0 0 0 23
5:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
6:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:00 19 0 0 0 0 19
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 20 0 0 0 0 20
6:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
6:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:45 13 1 0 0 0 14
7:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:00 23 0 0 0 0 23
7:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
7:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 19:30 19 0 0 0 0 19
7:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 19:45 34 0 0 0 0 34
8:00 16 0 0 0 0 16 20:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
8:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 20:15 20 0 0 0 0 20
8:30 20 0 0 0 0 20 20:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
8:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 20:45 21 0 0 0 0 21
9:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
9:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
9:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:45 12 1 0 0 0 13 21:45 7 0 0 0 0 7

10:00 12 0 0 0 0 12 22:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
10:15 10 2 0 0 0 12 22:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:30 10 2 0 0 0 12 22:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
10:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 23:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:15 13 1 0 0 0 14 23:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:30 13 1 0 0 0 14 23:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
11:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 23:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
TOTAL 285 7 0 0 0 292 TOTAL 748 4 2 0 0 754

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 7:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 60 AM PEAK VOLUME 92

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 1,033 11 2 0 0 1,046
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.8% 1.1% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 60 0 0 0 0 60 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 83 0 0 0 0 83 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 3 - Vista Springs Apartments

58



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS78 Dwy north of Box Springs

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 12:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
0:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 12:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 14 1 0 0 0 15
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 13:30 8 1 1 0 0 10
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 14:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 11 0 1 0 0 12
2:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:45 20 0 0 0 0 20
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 20 0 0 0 0 20
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
4:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 16:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
4:30 14 0 0 0 0 14 16:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
4:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:45 19 0 0 0 0 19
5:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
5:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
5:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 17:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 18:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 18:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
6:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 18:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:00 29 0 0 0 0 29 19:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:15 17 0 0 0 0 17 19:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
7:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 19:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:45 30 0 0 0 0 30 19:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
8:00 16 0 0 0 0 16 20:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:45 15 0 0 0 0 15 20:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 21:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 21:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 17 0 0 0 0 17 22:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 22:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:30 14 2 0 0 0 16 22:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:45 8 1 0 0 0 9 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 10 1 0 0 0 11 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 398 4 0 0 0 402 TOTAL 466 2 2 0 0 470

AM PEAK HOUR 7:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 88 AM PEAK VOLUME 69

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 864 6 2 0 0 872
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.1% 0.7% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 88 0 0 0 0 88 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 69 0 0 0 0 69 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 3 - Vista Springs Apartments

59



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS73 Southern Dwy east of Country Village.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:45 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

AM PEAK HOUR 11:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 11:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 0 AM PEAK VOLUME 0

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 0 0 0 0 0 0
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 4 - Vesada Aparment Homes

60



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS73 Southern Dwy east of Country Village.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 4 1 0 0 0 5
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
3:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
6:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
7:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:45 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 69 0 0 0 0 69 TOTAL 78 1 0 0 0 79

AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 2:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 13 AM PEAK VOLUME 13

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 147 1 0 0 0 148
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.3% 0.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 9 0 0 0 0 9 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 7 0 0 0 0 7 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 4 - Vesada Aparment Homes

61



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS74 Northern Dwy east of Country Village.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 12:00 33 0 0 0 0 33
0:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 12:15 33 1 0 0 0 34
0:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 12:30 36 1 0 0 0 37
0:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:45 37 0 1 0 0 38
1:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 13:00 34 0 0 0 0 34
1:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 13:15 36 0 0 0 0 36
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 32 0 0 0 0 32
1:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:45 34 2 0 0 0 36
2:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 14:00 33 0 0 0 0 33
2:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:15 26 2 0 0 0 28
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 34 0 0 0 0 34
2:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 14:45 39 0 0 0 0 39
3:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:00 49 0 0 0 0 49
3:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:15 39 0 0 0 0 39
3:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 15:30 26 0 0 0 0 26
3:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 15:45 65 0 0 0 0 65
4:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:00 49 0 0 0 0 49
4:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 16:15 59 1 0 0 0 60
4:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:30 74 0 0 0 0 74
4:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 16:45 52 0 0 0 0 52
5:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:00 47 0 0 0 0 47
5:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:15 51 0 0 0 0 51
5:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:30 50 0 0 0 0 50
5:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:45 55 0 0 0 0 55
6:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:00 60 0 0 0 0 60
6:15 15 0 0 0 0 15 18:15 52 0 0 0 0 52
6:30 13 0 0 0 0 13 18:30 44 0 0 0 0 44
6:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 18:45 51 2 0 0 0 53
7:00 19 0 0 0 0 19 19:00 42 0 0 0 0 42
7:15 16 0 0 0 0 16 19:15 26 0 0 0 0 26
7:30 14 0 0 0 0 14 19:30 46 0 0 0 0 46
7:45 34 0 0 0 0 34 19:45 42 0 0 0 0 42
8:00 30 0 0 0 0 30 20:00 44 0 0 0 0 44
8:15 39 0 0 0 0 39 20:15 35 0 0 0 0 35
8:30 28 0 0 0 0 28 20:30 29 0 0 0 0 29
8:45 27 0 0 0 0 27 20:45 33 0 0 0 0 33
9:00 22 0 0 0 0 22 21:00 31 0 0 0 0 31
9:15 21 0 0 0 0 21 21:15 27 0 0 0 0 27
9:30 20 2 0 0 0 22 21:30 27 0 0 0 0 27
9:45 24 2 0 0 0 26 21:45 27 0 0 0 0 27

10:00 19 1 0 0 0 20 22:00 22 0 0 0 0 22
10:15 17 1 0 0 0 18 22:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
10:30 21 0 0 0 0 21 22:30 21 0 0 0 0 21
10:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 22:45 22 0 0 0 0 22
11:00 31 0 1 0 0 32 23:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
11:15 28 0 0 0 0 28 23:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
11:30 21 1 0 0 0 22 23:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
11:45 23 2 0 0 0 25 23:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
TOTAL 629 9 1 0 0 639 TOTAL 1,767 9 1 0 0 1,777

AM PEAK HOUR 7:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 131 AM PEAK VOLUME 248

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 2,396 18 2 0 0 2,416
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.2% 0.7% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 131 0 0 0 0 131 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 234 1 0 0 0 235 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 4 - Vesada Aparment Homes

62



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS74 Northern Dwy east of Country Village.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 27 2 0 0 0 29
0:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:15 33 0 0 0 0 33
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 34 2 0 0 0 36
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 28 1 0 0 0 29
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 29 0 1 0 0 30
1:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:15 44 0 0 0 0 44
1:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:30 38 1 0 0 0 39
1:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:45 29 1 0 0 0 30
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 24 2 0 0 0 26
2:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 14:15 22 0 0 0 0 22
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 25 1 0 0 0 26
2:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:45 35 0 0 0 0 35
3:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:00 31 0 0 0 0 31
3:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
3:30 16 0 0 0 0 16 15:30 29 0 0 0 0 29
3:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:45 29 0 0 0 0 29
4:00 17 0 0 0 0 17 16:00 26 0 0 0 0 26
4:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 16:15 29 0 0 0 0 29
4:30 17 0 0 0 0 17 16:30 29 1 0 0 0 30
4:45 20 2 0 0 0 22 16:45 31 0 0 0 0 31
5:00 19 1 0 0 0 20 17:00 30 0 0 0 0 30
5:15 14 0 0 0 0 14 17:15 34 0 0 0 0 34
5:30 14 0 0 0 0 14 17:30 38 0 0 0 0 38
5:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 17:45 36 0 0 0 0 36
6:00 18 0 0 0 0 18 18:00 37 0 0 0 0 37
6:15 38 0 0 0 0 38 18:15 41 0 0 0 0 41
6:30 34 0 0 0 0 34 18:30 31 0 0 0 0 31
6:45 46 0 0 0 0 46 18:45 21 0 0 0 0 21
7:00 46 0 0 0 0 46 19:00 31 0 0 0 0 31
7:15 82 0 0 0 0 82 19:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
7:30 56 0 0 0 0 56 19:30 40 1 0 0 0 41
7:45 52 0 0 0 0 52 19:45 32 0 0 0 0 32
8:00 48 0 0 0 0 48 20:00 30 0 0 0 0 30
8:15 59 1 0 0 0 60 20:15 17 0 0 0 0 17
8:30 26 0 0 0 0 26 20:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
8:45 32 1 0 0 0 33 20:45 19 0 0 0 0 19
9:00 27 0 0 0 0 27 21:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
9:15 26 0 0 0 0 26 21:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
9:30 31 1 0 0 0 32 21:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
9:45 36 0 0 0 0 36 21:45 19 0 0 0 0 19

10:00 28 0 0 0 0 28 22:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
10:15 32 1 0 0 0 33 22:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
10:30 32 0 0 0 0 32 22:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
10:45 23 0 0 0 0 23 22:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:00 29 0 0 0 0 29 23:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:15 25 0 0 0 0 25 23:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:30 32 0 1 0 0 33 23:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:45 33 2 0 0 0 35 23:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
TOTAL 1,080 9 1 0 0 1,090 TOTAL 1,205 12 1 0 0 1,218

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 238 AM PEAK VOLUME 152

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 2,285 21 2 0 0 2,308
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.0% 0.9% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 238 0 0 0 0 238 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 138 0 0 0 0 138 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 4 - Vesada Aparment Homes

63



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS84 Northern Dwy east of Milky Way.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 5 1 0 0 0 6
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 7 1 0 0 0 8
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 5 0 0 1 0 6 19:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
8:15 4 1 0 0 0 5 20:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
8:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:45 7 0 0 0 0 7

10:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 101 1 0 1 0 103 TOTAL 367 2 0 0 0 369

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 24 AM PEAK VOLUME 53

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 468 3 0 1 0 472
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.2% 0.6% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 23 1 0 0 0 24 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 52 0 0 0 0 52 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 5 - Morning Ridge Apartments

64



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS84 Northern Dwy east of Milky Way.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 11 1 0 0 0 12
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 10 1 0 0 0 11
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 4 2 0 0 0 6
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 8 1 0 0 0 9
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 19 0 0 0 0 19
4:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
5:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:15 5 1 0 0 0 6
5:30 10 0 0 0 0 10 17:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 17:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:15 12 0 0 0 0 12 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 18:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 19:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:15 19 0 0 0 0 19 19:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 13 0 0 0 0 13 19:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 19:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:15 15 0 0 0 0 15 20:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:30 14 0 0 0 0 14 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:30 4 1 0 0 0 5 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 10 1 0 0 0 11 21:45 4 0 0 0 0 4

10:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 10 1 0 0 0 11 22:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:00 5 1 0 0 0 6 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 274 4 0 0 0 278 TOTAL 282 6 0 0 0 288

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 62 AM PEAK VOLUME 42

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 556 10 0 0 0 566
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.2% 1.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 62 0 0 0 0 62 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 38 0 0 0 0 38 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 5 - Morning Ridge Apartments

65



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS85 Middle Dwy east of Milky Way.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
0:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 12 1 0 0 0 13
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 12 1 0 0 0 13
1:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 13:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 11 1 0 0 0 12
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 19 0 0 0 0 19
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 20 0 0 0 0 20
4:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:45 18 1 0 0 0 19
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 20 0 0 0 0 20
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 19 0 0 0 0 19
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 19 0 0 0 0 19
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
6:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:15 30 0 0 0 0 30
6:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
7:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:00 23 3 0 0 0 26
7:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:30 19 0 0 0 0 19
7:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
8:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
8:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 11 1 0 0 0 12 23:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 167 1 0 0 0 168 TOTAL 545 7 0 0 0 552

AM PEAK HOUR 10:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 6:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 39 AM PEAK VOLUME 89

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 712 8 0 0 0 720
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.9% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 31 0 0 0 0 31 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 75 1 0 0 0 76 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 5 - Morning Ridge Apartments

66



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS85 Middle Dwy east of Milky Way.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
0:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 6 1 0 0 0 7
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 9 2 0 0 0 11
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 6 1 0 0 0 7
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 10 1 0 0 0 11
2:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 12 2 0 0 0 14
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 16 1 0 0 0 17
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:30 5 2 0 0 0 7 16:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 17:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:30 8 2 0 0 0 10 17:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:45 7 2 0 0 0 9 17:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:15 12 0 0 0 0 12 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 19:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 19:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:30 27 3 0 0 0 30 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 19:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:00 25 0 0 0 0 25 20:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:30 19 0 0 0 0 19 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 20:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 21:45 3 0 0 0 0 3

10:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 22:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 295 9 0 0 0 304 TOTAL 342 8 0 0 0 350

AM PEAK HOUR 7:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 85 AM PEAK VOLUME 47

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 637 17 0 0 0 654
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 97.4% 2.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 82 3 0 0 0 85 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 47 0 0 0 0 47 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 5 - Morning Ridge Apartments

67



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS86 Southern Dwy east of Milky Way.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 7 1 0 0 0 8
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 7 1 0 0 0 8
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 9 2 0 0 0 11
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 13 1 0 0 0 14
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 7 1 0 0 0 8
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 11 2 0 0 0 13
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 12 1 0 0 0 13
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
5:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 9 1 0 0 0 10
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 10 1 0 0 0 11
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
7:30 1 3 0 0 0 4 19:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
7:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
8:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 20:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
8:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:45 3 1 0 0 0 4 21:45 4 0 0 0 0 4

10:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
10:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
10:45 2 1 0 0 0 3 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 23:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
TOTAL 109 5 0 0 0 114 TOTAL 398 11 0 0 0 409

AM PEAK HOUR 8:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 23 AM PEAK VOLUME 50

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 507 16 0 0 0 523
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 96.9% 3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 23 0 0 0 0 23 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 49 1 0 0 0 50 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 5 - Morning Ridge Apartments

68



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS86 Southern Dwy east of Milky Way.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 4 1 0 0 0 5
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 5 1 0 0 0 6
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 16:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 17:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 17:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
5:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 19:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:15 7 0 0 1 0 8 20:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:30 15 0 0 0 0 15 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:45 4 0 0 0 0 4

10:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 208 0 0 1 0 209 TOTAL 247 2 0 0 0 249

AM PEAK HOUR 7:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 39 AM PEAK VOLUME 41

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 455 2 0 1 0 458
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.3% 0.4% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 38 0 0 1 0 39 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 41 0 0 0 0 41 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 5 - Morning Ridge Apartments

69



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS71 Northern dwy west of Doolittle

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
0:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 23 0 0 0 0 23
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:00 17 0 0 0 0 17
3:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
3:45 1 1 0 0 0 2 15:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 17 0 0 0 0 17
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
4:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 16:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:15 22 0 0 0 0 22
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
6:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:00 20 0 0 0 0 20
6:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
6:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
7:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:15 6 1 0 0 0 7
7:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
7:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
8:30 12 1 0 0 0 13 20:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
8:45 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
9:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
9:45 7 1 0 0 0 8 21:45 12 0 0 0 0 12

10:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
10:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 8 1 0 0 0 9 23:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 183 4 0 0 0 187 TOTAL 570 1 0 0 0 571

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 46 AM PEAK VOLUME 76

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 753 5 0 0 0 758
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.3% 0.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 45 1 0 0 0 46 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 72 0 0 0 0 72 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 6 - Stonegate Apartments

70



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS71 Northern dwy west of Doolittle

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 13 1 0 0 0 14
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 14 1 0 0 0 15
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 20 0 0 0 0 20
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
2:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 6 1 0 0 0 7
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
3:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 16:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 16:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 17:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
5:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 17:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 18:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 18:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 19:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:15 16 0 0 0 0 16 19:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:30 21 0 0 0 0 21 19:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:45 18 0 0 0 0 18 19:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
8:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:00 10 0 1 0 0 11 21:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:15 14 0 0 0 0 14 21:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:30 7 1 0 0 0 8 21:30 3 1 0 0 0 4
9:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:45 5 1 0 0 0 6

10:00 7 1 0 0 0 8 22:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:15 5 1 0 0 0 6 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 5 1 0 0 0 6 22:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:45 10 2 0 0 0 12 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 5 1 0 0 0 6 23:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 7 1 0 0 0 8 23:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:45 13 0 0 0 0 13 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 309 8 1 0 0 318 TOTAL 401 5 0 0 0 406

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 1:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 68 AM PEAK VOLUME 59

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 710 13 1 0 0 724
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.1% 1.8% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 68 0 0 0 0 68 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 47 0 0 0 0 47 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 6 - Stonegate Apartments

71



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS72 Southern dwy west of Doolittle

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 19 1 0 0 0 20
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 16 1 0 0 0 17
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 13 1 0 0 0 14
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 17 1 0 0 0 18
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 21 0 0 0 0 21
3:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:15 19 2 0 0 0 21
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 19 1 0 0 0 20
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 24 0 0 0 0 24
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 24 0 0 0 0 24
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 21 0 0 0 0 21
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 23 0 0 0 0 23
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
6:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
7:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:15 4 2 0 0 0 6 19:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
7:30 6 1 0 0 0 7 19:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:00 13 1 0 0 0 14
8:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
8:30 10 0 1 0 0 11 20:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
8:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
9:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 21:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
9:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 21:15 8 1 0 0 0 9
9:30 10 1 0 0 0 11 21:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:45 9 0 0 0 0 9

10:00 5 0 1 0 0 6 22:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:15 10 2 0 0 0 12 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 21 1 0 0 0 22 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 7 1 0 0 0 8 22:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 14 0 0 0 0 14 23:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:15 10 2 0 0 0 12 23:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:30 18 1 0 0 0 19 23:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:45 10 0 0 0 0 10 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 225 11 2 0 0 238 TOTAL 594 9 0 0 0 603

AM PEAK HOUR 10:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 56 AM PEAK VOLUME 83

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 819 20 2 0 0 841
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 97.4% 2.4% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 38 0 1 0 0 39 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 83 0 0 0 0 83 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 6 - Stonegate Apartments

72



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS72 Southern dwy west of Doolittle

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 11 1 0 0 0 12
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:00 6 1 0 0 0 7 16:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 18:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 19:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 18 0 0 0 0 18 19:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:45 4 0 0 0 0 4

10:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 22:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 22:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 23:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 235 1 0 0 0 236 TOTAL 296 1 0 0 0 297

AM PEAK HOUR 7:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 48 AM PEAK VOLUME 42

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 531 2 0 0 0 533
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.6% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 48 0 0 0 0 48 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 40 0 0 0 0 40 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 6 - Stonegate Apartments

73



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS82 Dwy east of Elm.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:45 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 2 0 0 0 0 2 TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

AM PEAK HOUR 11:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 11:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 1 AM PEAK VOLUME 0

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 2 0 0 0 0 2
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 1 0 0 0 0 1 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 7 - River's Edge Apartment Homes

74



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS82 Dwy east of Elm.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 2 1 0 0 0 3
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 1 1 0 0 0 2
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 3 0 0 1 0 4
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 1 1 0 0 0 2
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 19:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
7:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
7:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 21:45 4 0 0 0 0 4

10:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 1 1 0 0 0 2 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:45 0 1 0 0 0 1 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 38 2 0 0 0 40 TOTAL 65 3 0 1 0 69

AM PEAK HOUR 7:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 17 AM PEAK VOLUME 11

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 103 5 0 1 0 109
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 94.5% 4.6% 0.0% 0.9% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 17 0 0 0 0 17 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 9 1 0 0 0 10 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 7 - River's Edge Apartment Homes

75



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS83 Dwy south of Lakeshore.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:00 23 3 0 0 0 26
0:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:15 17 2 0 0 0 19
0:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:30 22 0 0 0 0 22
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 17 0 0 0 0 17
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 17 2 0 0 0 19
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
1:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:45 36 0 0 0 0 36
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 29 0 0 0 0 29
2:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:15 25 2 0 0 0 27
2:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:30 13 2 0 0 0 15
2:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 14:45 32 1 0 1 0 34
3:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:00 27 0 0 0 0 27
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 19 0 0 0 0 19
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 25 1 0 0 0 26
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 43 0 0 0 0 43
4:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:00 36 0 0 0 0 36
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 23 1 0 0 0 24
4:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:30 41 0 0 0 0 41
4:45 2 1 0 0 0 3 16:45 35 0 0 0 0 35
5:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:00 42 2 0 0 0 44
5:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:15 35 0 0 0 0 35
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 32 0 0 0 0 32
5:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:45 27 0 0 0 0 27
6:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:00 45 0 0 0 0 45
6:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:15 40 0 0 0 0 40
6:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:30 35 1 0 0 0 36
6:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:45 30 0 0 0 0 30
7:00 8 1 0 0 0 9 19:00 32 0 0 0 0 32
7:15 4 1 0 0 0 5 19:15 29 0 0 0 0 29
7:30 21 0 0 0 0 21 19:30 23 0 0 0 0 23
7:45 28 0 0 0 0 28 19:45 27 0 0 0 0 27
8:00 17 0 0 0 0 17 20:00 37 1 0 0 0 38
8:15 28 0 0 0 0 28 20:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
8:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:30 20 0 0 0 0 20
8:45 14 1 0 0 0 15 20:45 20 0 0 0 0 20
9:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 21:00 31 0 0 0 0 31
9:15 15 1 0 0 0 16 21:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
9:30 12 2 0 0 0 14 21:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
9:45 14 1 0 0 0 15 21:45 15 0 0 0 0 15

10:00 15 3 0 0 0 18 22:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
10:15 15 1 0 0 0 16 22:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
10:30 10 2 0 0 0 12 22:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
10:45 10 1 0 0 0 11 22:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:00 12 2 0 0 0 14 23:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:15 12 0 0 0 0 12 23:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:30 22 0 0 0 0 22 23:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:45 26 0 0 0 0 26 23:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
TOTAL 380 17 0 0 0 397 TOTAL 1,151 18 0 1 0 1,170

AM PEAK HOUR 7:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 94 AM PEAK VOLUME 155

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 1,531 35 0 1 0 1,567
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 97.7% 2.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 94 0 0 0 0 94 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 153 2 0 0 0 155 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 7 - River's Edge Apartment Homes

76



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS83 Dwy south of Lakeshore.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 12:00 21 0 0 0 0 21
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 20 1 0 0 0 21
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 14 1 0 0 0 15
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
1:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:15 16 0 0 0 0 16
1:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:30 22 1 0 0 0 23
1:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:45 24 1 0 0 0 25
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 23 0 0 0 0 23
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 25 1 0 0 0 26
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 26 1 0 0 0 27
3:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:00 18 1 0 0 0 19
3:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:15 31 0 0 0 0 31
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 23 0 0 0 0 23
3:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 15:45 31 1 0 0 0 32
4:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
4:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 16:15 23 0 0 0 0 23
4:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 16:30 25 0 0 0 0 25
4:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 16:45 27 0 0 0 0 27
5:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:00 32 0 0 0 0 32
5:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 17:15 25 0 0 0 0 25
5:30 15 1 0 0 0 16 17:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
5:45 13 0 0 0 0 13 17:45 20 0 0 0 0 20
6:00 12 1 0 0 0 13 18:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
6:15 19 0 0 0 0 19 18:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
6:30 23 0 0 0 0 23 18:30 25 1 0 0 0 26
6:45 16 1 0 0 0 17 18:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
7:00 13 2 0 0 0 15 19:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:15 35 0 0 0 0 35 19:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
7:30 55 0 0 0 0 55 19:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
7:45 40 0 0 0 0 40 19:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
8:00 35 0 0 0 0 35 20:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
8:15 20 0 0 0 0 20 20:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
8:30 17 0 0 0 0 17 20:30 15 1 0 0 0 16
8:45 18 0 0 0 0 18 20:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
9:00 21 0 0 0 0 21 21:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
9:15 28 0 0 0 0 28 21:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:30 24 1 0 0 0 25 21:30 6 1 0 0 0 7
9:45 13 0 0 0 0 13 21:45 7 0 0 0 0 7

10:00 21 2 0 0 0 23 22:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
10:15 26 3 0 0 0 29 22:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
10:30 16 2 0 0 0 18 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 16 3 0 0 0 19 22:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:00 15 0 0 0 0 15 23:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:15 14 1 0 0 0 15 23:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:30 21 0 0 0 0 21 23:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:45 16 1 0 0 0 17 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 656 18 0 0 0 674 TOTAL 775 11 0 0 0 786

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 165 AM PEAK VOLUME 109

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 1,431 29 0 0 0 1,460
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 165 0 0 0 0 165 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 109 0 0 0 0 109 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 7 - River's Edge Apartment Homes

77



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS90 Western Dwy south of Mayberry.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:15 10 0 0 1 0 11
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
3:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 17 1 0 0 0 18
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 15 0 0 0 0 15
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:00 8 1 0 0 0 9
6:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 8 1 0 0 0 9
7:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
8:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:15 2 2 0 0 0 4 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 135 2 0 0 0 137 TOTAL 360 3 0 1 0 364

AM PEAK HOUR 7:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 2:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 26 AM PEAK VOLUME 56

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 495 5 0 1 0 501
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.8% 1.0% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 26 0 0 0 0 26 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 44 0 0 0 0 44 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 8 - Mayberry Colony Apartments

78



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS90 Western Dwy south of Mayberry.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 16:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 16:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 17:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 13 1 0 0 0 14
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
6:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 18:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
7:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:15 21 0 0 0 0 21 19:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:00 21 0 0 0 0 21 20:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 20:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:30 8 0 0 1 0 9 20:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:45 5 0 0 0 0 5

10:00 9 1 0 0 0 10 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 4 3 0 0 0 7 22:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:30 2 1 0 0 0 3 22:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 22:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 23:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 233 5 0 1 0 239 TOTAL 348 1 0 0 0 349

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 53 AM PEAK VOLUME 55

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 581 6 0 1 0 588
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.8% 1.0% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 53 0 0 0 0 53 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 54 1 0 0 0 55 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 8 - Mayberry Colony Apartments

79



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS91 Eastern Dwy south of Mayberry.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
0:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 13:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 8 1 0 0 0 9
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:00 12 0 0 0 0 12 19:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
7:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 19:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:30 6 0 0 1 0 7 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:45 3 2 0 0 0 5 21:45 3 0 0 0 0 3

10:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:15 3 2 0 0 0 5 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
10:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 127 4 0 1 0 132 TOTAL 292 1 0 0 0 293

AM PEAK HOUR 7:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 2:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 31 AM PEAK VOLUME 45

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 419 5 0 1 0 425
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.6% 1.2% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 31 0 0 0 0 31 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 40 1 0 0 0 41 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 8 - Mayberry Colony Apartments

80



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS91 Eastern Dwy south of Mayberry.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 4 0 0 1 0 5
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 7 1 0 0 0 8
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
5:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
5:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 17:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 18:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 19:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:30 10 0 0 0 0 10 19:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 19:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:45 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:45 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:15 7 1 0 0 0 8 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 147 1 0 0 0 148 TOTAL 181 1 0 1 0 183

AM PEAK HOUR 6:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 39 AM PEAK VOLUME 34

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 328 2 0 1 0 331
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.1% 0.6% 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 36 0 0 0 0 36 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 25 0 0 0 0 25 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 8 - Mayberry Colony Apartments

81



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS92 DWY west of Hathaway.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 6 0 1 0 0 7
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 7 1 0 0 0 8
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 10 1 0 0 0 11
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
3:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:15 1 0 1 0 0 2 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:00 4 1 0 0 0 5
7:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
8:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 20:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:45 3 1 0 0 0 4 21:45 5 0 0 0 0 5

10:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 4 1 0 0 0 5 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 101 2 1 0 0 104 TOTAL 312 3 1 0 0 316

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 22 AM PEAK VOLUME 45

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 413 5 2 0 0 420
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.3% 1.2% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 22 0 0 0 0 22 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 32 0 0 0 0 32 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 9 - Summit Ridge Apartments

82



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS92 DWY west of Hathaway.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 3 0 1 0 0 4
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 3 1 0 0 0 4
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 8 1 0 0 0 9
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 9 1 0 0 0 10
4:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:00 4 1 0 0 0 5
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:45 10 0 0 0 0 10 17:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:45 4 0 1 0 0 5 18:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 19:15 4 1 0 0 0 5
7:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 19:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:15 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:45 5 0 0 0 0 5

10:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
11:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 134 0 1 0 0 135 TOTAL 219 5 1 0 0 225

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 29 AM PEAK VOLUME 36

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 353 5 2 0 0 360
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.1% 1.4% 0.6% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 29 0 0 0 0 29 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 27 1 0 0 0 28 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 9 - Summit Ridge Apartments

83



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS93 DWY north of George.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 12 0 1 0 0 13
0:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:15 10 1 0 0 0 11
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 21 0 0 0 0 21
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 10 1 0 0 0 11
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 14:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:15 1 1 0 0 0 2 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 19 1 0 0 0 20
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 19 0 0 0 0 19
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 22 0 0 0 0 22
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:00 15 1 0 0 0 16
5:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 17:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
6:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:00 23 0 0 0 0 23
6:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
7:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
7:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 19:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:30 15 0 0 0 0 15 19:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
8:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 20:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:30 16 0 0 0 0 16 20:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:45 15 0 0 0 0 15 20:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
9:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 21:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
9:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:45 6 0 0 0 0 6

10:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
10:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 22:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
11:15 11 1 0 0 0 12 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
TOTAL 213 2 0 0 0 215 TOTAL 527 4 1 0 0 532

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 55 AM PEAK VOLUME 76

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 740 6 1 0 0 747
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.1% 0.8% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 55 0 0 0 0 55 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 62 1 0 0 0 63 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 9 - Summit Ridge Apartments

84



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS93 DWY north of George.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 12 1 1 0 0 14
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 20 0 0 0 0 20
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 14 0 0 0 0 14
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 9 1 0 0 0 10
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:30 1 1 0 0 0 2 14:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 19 0 0 0 0 19
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 17 0 0 0 0 17
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 20 0 0 0 0 20
5:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:45 13 0 0 0 0 13
6:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 18:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
7:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:15 18 0 0 0 0 18 19:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:30 20 0 0 0 0 20 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 31 0 0 0 0 31 19:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
8:00 25 0 0 0 0 25 20:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:15 16 0 0 0 0 16 20:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:30 15 0 0 0 0 15 20:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
8:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 20:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 21:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:15 15 0 0 0 0 15 21:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 21:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 9 1 0 0 0 10 22:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 7 0 0 0 0 7 22:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:45 12 0 0 0 0 12 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 23:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:15 8 1 0 0 0 9 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 23:30 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 19 1 0 0 0 20 23:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
TOTAL 329 4 0 0 0 333 TOTAL 468 2 1 0 0 471

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 12:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 94 AM PEAK VOLUME 67

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 797 6 1 0 0 804
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.1% 0.7% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 94 0 0 0 0 94 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 51 0 0 0 0 51 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 9 - Summit Ridge Apartments

85



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS87 Dwy north of Thornton.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 2 1 0 0 0 3
0:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:30 3 1 0 0 0 4
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
6:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:15 10 0 0 0 0 10 19:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
8:45 2 1 0 0 0 3 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 21:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 4 1 0 0 0 5 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:30 4 1 0 0 0 5 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 89 3 0 0 0 92 TOTAL 224 2 0 0 0 226

AM PEAK HOUR 8:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 5:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 22 AM PEAK VOLUME 35

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 313 5 0 0 0 318
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.4% 1.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 16 0 0 0 0 16 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 30 0 0 0 0 30 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 10 - Riverdale Apartments

86



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS87 Dwy north of Thornton.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 0 1 0 0 0 1
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
6:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 19:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:15 14 0 0 0 0 14 19:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 19:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 5 1 0 0 0 6 20:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:45 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 4 1 0 0 0 5 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 128 2 0 0 0 130 TOTAL 194 1 0 0 0 195

AM PEAK HOUR 7:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 37 AM PEAK VOLUME 31

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 322 3 0 0 0 325
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.1% 0.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 37 0 0 0 0 37 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 29 0 0 0 0 29 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 10 - Riverdale Apartments

87



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS88 Southern Dwy east of Cawston.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
0:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
1:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
1:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
3:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
5:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
5:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
6:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:00 12 0 0 0 0 12 19:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
7:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 19:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
7:30 10 0 0 0 0 10 19:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 20:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 21:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:30 5 1 0 0 0 6 22:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 1 1 0 0 0 2 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 145 2 0 0 0 147 TOTAL 340 0 0 0 0 340

AM PEAK HOUR 7:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:45 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 38 AM PEAK VOLUME 52

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 485 2 0 0 0 487
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.6% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 38 0 0 0 0 38 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 52 0 0 0 0 52 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 10 - Riverdale Apartments

88



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS88 Southern Dwy east of Cawston.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
0:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
0:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:30 7 2 0 0 0 9
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 13 0 0 0 0 13
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:45 11 0 0 0 0 11
4:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
5:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:00 12 0 0 0 0 12
5:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:45 14 0 0 0 0 14 18:45 8 0 0 0 0 8
7:00 20 0 0 0 0 20 19:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:15 18 0 0 0 0 18 19:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:30 26 0 0 0 0 26 19:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 19:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 20:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
9:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 22:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:45 7 1 0 0 0 8 22:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:00 8 1 0 0 0 9 23:00 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 5 1 0 0 0 6 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 201 3 0 0 0 204 TOTAL 282 2 0 0 0 284

AM PEAK HOUR 6:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 1:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 78 AM PEAK VOLUME 47

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 483 5 0 0 0 488
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.0% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 75 0 0 0 0 75 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 36 0 0 0 0 36 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 10 - Riverdale Apartments

89



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS89 Northern Dwy east of Cawston.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 7 1 0 0 0 8
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 5 0 1 0 0 6
3:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 16:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
4:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
5:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
5:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
6:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 18:30 8 0 0 0 0 8
6:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 18:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
7:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 19:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
8:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 20:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 20:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
8:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 20:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
9:00 5 1 0 0 0 6 21:00 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 21:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:45 6 0 0 0 0 6

10:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
10:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 23:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:45 3 1 0 0 0 4 23:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
TOTAL 73 2 0 0 0 75 TOTAL 231 1 1 0 0 233

AM PEAK HOUR 8:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 4:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 17 AM PEAK VOLUME 32

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 304 3 1 0 0 308
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.7% 1.0% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 10 0 0 0 0 10 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 32 0 0 0 0 32 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 10 - Riverdale Apartments

90



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS89 Northern Dwy east of Cawston.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 12:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
1:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:30 5 0 0 0 0 5
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 4 0 0 0 0 4
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
2:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
2:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
3:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 15:30 5 0 1 0 0 6
3:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:30 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
4:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
5:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
5:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 17:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
5:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:30 4 0 0 0 0 4
5:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 17:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
6:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
6:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 18:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 18:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
7:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:00 6 0 0 0 0 6
7:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 19:15 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 19:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
7:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 19:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:00 3 0 0 0 0 3
8:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 20:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 20:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 20:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
9:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 21:15 5 0 0 0 0 5
9:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 21:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
9:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:45 2 0 0 0 0 2

10:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:15 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 22:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
10:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 22:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 23:30 1 0 0 0 0 1
11:45 1 1 0 0 0 2 23:45 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 104 1 0 0 0 105 TOTAL 183 0 1 0 0 184

AM PEAK HOUR 6:45 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 24 AM PEAK VOLUME 28

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 287 1 1 0 0 289
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 99.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 21 0 0 0 0 21 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 23 0 0 0 0 23 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 10 - Riverdale Apartments

91



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS70 Dwy east of E Parkridge.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
0:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
0:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 12:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
0:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:45 13 1 0 0 0 14
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 20 2 0 0 0 22
1:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:15 10 2 0 0 0 12
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 18 1 0 0 0 19
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
2:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:00 19 2 0 0 0 21
2:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:15 21 1 0 0 0 22
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 37 1 0 0 0 38
2:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:45 32 0 0 0 0 32
3:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
3:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:15 22 2 0 0 0 24
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 20 0 0 0 0 20
3:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
4:00 7 0 0 0 0 7 16:00 26 3 0 0 0 29
4:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
4:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 16:30 26 0 0 0 0 26
4:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 16:45 25 0 0 0 0 25
5:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 17:00 23 0 0 0 0 23
5:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:15 25 0 0 0 0 25
5:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 17:30 19 0 0 0 0 19
5:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:45 30 0 0 0 0 30
6:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 18:00 13 0 0 0 0 13
6:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:15 28 1 0 0 0 29
6:30 3 2 0 0 0 5 18:30 14 1 0 0 0 15
6:45 8 1 0 0 0 9 18:45 26 0 0 0 0 26
7:00 6 2 0 0 0 8 19:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
7:15 7 3 0 0 0 10 19:15 9 0 0 0 0 9
7:30 20 0 1 0 0 21 19:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
7:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 19:45 20 0 0 0 0 20
8:00 11 0 1 0 0 12 20:00 14 0 0 0 0 14
8:15 15 1 0 0 0 16 20:15 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:30 11 1 0 0 0 12 20:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
8:45 8 2 0 0 0 10 20:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
9:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 21:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 21:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
9:30 9 2 0 0 0 11 21:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
9:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 21:45 12 0 0 0 0 12

10:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 22:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
10:15 3 1 0 0 0 4 22:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
10:30 9 1 0 0 0 10 22:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
10:45 15 0 0 0 0 15 22:45 5 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 23:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:15 7 1 0 0 0 8 23:15 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:30 11 0 0 0 0 11 23:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 23:45 2 0 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 284 17 2 0 0 303 TOTAL 790 17 0 0 0 807

AM PEAK HOUR 7:30 AM AM PEAK HOUR 2:00 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 60 AM PEAK VOLUME 113

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 1,074 34 2 0 0 1,110
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 96.8% 3.1% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 57 1 2 0 0 60 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 98 3 0 0 0 101 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 11 - Parkridge Meadows Apartments

92



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS70 Dwy east of E Parkridge.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 12:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
0:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:15 12 1 0 0 0 13
0:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
0:45 3 0 0 0 0 3 12:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 16 2 0 0 0 18
1:15 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:15 15 2 0 0 0 17
1:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:30 14 0 0 0 0 14
1:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 13:45 18 0 0 0 0 18
2:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:00 16 3 0 0 0 19
2:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:15 20 2 0 0 0 22
2:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 14:30 17 0 0 0 0 17
2:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 14:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
3:00 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:00 16 1 0 0 0 17
3:15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15:15 29 2 0 0 0 31
3:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 15:30 24 0 0 0 0 24
3:45 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:45 21 0 0 0 0 21
4:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 16:00 15 3 0 0 0 18
4:15 14 0 0 0 0 14 16:15 17 0 0 0 0 17
4:30 16 0 0 0 0 16 16:30 12 0 0 0 0 12
4:45 11 0 0 0 0 11 16:45 9 0 0 0 0 9
5:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:00 18 0 0 0 0 18
5:15 19 0 0 0 0 19 17:15 15 0 0 0 0 15
5:30 13 0 0 0 0 13 17:30 15 0 0 0 0 15
5:45 16 0 0 0 0 16 17:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 18:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
6:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 18:15 12 0 0 0 0 12
6:30 18 0 0 0 0 18 18:30 15 3 0 0 0 18
6:45 28 3 0 0 0 31 18:45 12 0 0 0 0 12
7:00 12 1 0 0 0 13 19:00 14 1 0 0 0 15
7:15 35 4 0 0 0 39 19:15 11 0 0 0 0 11
7:30 26 0 0 0 0 26 19:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:45 26 0 1 0 0 27 19:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
8:00 23 0 0 0 0 23 20:00 16 0 0 0 0 16
8:15 10 0 1 0 0 11 20:15 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:30 14 1 0 0 0 15 20:30 19 0 0 0 0 19
8:45 20 3 0 0 0 23 20:45 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:00 15 0 0 0 0 15 21:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
9:15 16 0 0 0 0 16 21:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
9:30 9 1 0 0 0 10 21:30 6 0 0 0 0 6
9:45 16 1 0 0 0 17 21:45 6 0 0 0 0 6

10:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 22:00 1 0 0 0 0 1
10:15 17 0 0 0 0 17 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 8 1 0 0 0 9 22:30 7 0 0 0 0 7
10:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 22:45 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 23:00 8 0 0 0 0 8
11:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 23:15 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 12 1 0 0 0 13 23:30 3 0 0 0 0 3
11:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 511 16 2 0 0 529 TOTAL 572 20 0 0 0 592

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 115 AM PEAK VOLUME 94

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 1,083 36 2 0 0 1,121
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 96.6% 3.2% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 110 4 1 0 0 115 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 60 0 0 0 0 60 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 11 - Parkridge Meadows Apartments

93



A021323

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS81 Dwy west of Goetz.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 11 0 0 0 0 11 12:00 29 1 0 0 0 30
0:15 7 0 0 0 0 7 12:15 34 0 0 0 0 34
0:30 9 0 0 0 0 9 12:30 28 0 0 0 0 28
0:45 6 0 0 0 0 6 12:45 32 1 0 0 0 33
1:00 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:00 20 2 0 0 0 22
1:15 6 0 0 0 0 6 13:15 40 2 0 0 0 42
1:30 3 0 0 0 0 3 13:30 37 0 0 0 0 37
1:45 7 0 0 0 0 7 13:45 29 0 0 0 0 29
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 28 0 0 0 0 28
2:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 14:15 48 1 0 0 0 49
2:30 5 0 0 0 0 5 14:30 45 0 0 0 0 45
2:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 14:45 33 1 0 0 0 34
3:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 15:00 33 1 0 0 0 34
3:15 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:15 51 0 0 0 0 51
3:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 15:30 48 0 1 0 0 49
3:45 8 0 0 0 0 8 15:45 62 0 0 0 0 62
4:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 16:00 56 1 0 0 0 57
4:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 16:15 42 0 0 0 0 42
4:30 1 0 0 0 0 1 16:30 49 0 0 0 0 49
4:45 10 0 0 0 0 10 16:45 39 0 0 0 0 39
5:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:00 59 0 0 0 0 59
5:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 17:15 43 0 0 0 0 43
5:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 17:30 40 0 0 0 0 40
5:45 5 0 0 0 0 5 17:45 50 1 0 0 0 51
6:00 6 0 0 0 0 6 18:00 38 1 0 0 0 39
6:15 3 0 0 0 0 3 18:15 33 0 0 0 0 33
6:30 8 0 0 0 0 8 18:30 44 0 0 0 0 44
6:45 9 0 0 0 0 9 18:45 35 1 0 0 0 36
7:00 9 0 0 0 0 9 19:00 33 0 0 0 0 33
7:15 14 0 0 0 0 14 19:15 29 0 0 0 0 29
7:30 15 0 0 0 0 15 19:30 27 0 0 0 0 27
7:45 34 0 0 0 0 34 19:45 20 1 0 0 0 21
8:00 44 1 0 0 0 45 20:00 29 0 0 0 0 29
8:15 47 2 1 0 0 50 20:15 25 0 0 0 0 25
8:30 23 0 0 0 0 23 20:30 33 0 0 0 0 33
8:45 37 0 0 0 0 37 20:45 29 0 0 0 0 29
9:00 14 0 0 0 0 14 21:00 29 0 0 0 0 29
9:15 13 0 0 0 0 13 21:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
9:30 16 0 0 0 0 16 21:30 32 0 0 0 0 32
9:45 10 1 0 0 0 11 21:45 10 0 0 0 0 10

10:00 11 1 0 0 0 12 22:00 15 0 0 0 0 15
10:15 16 2 0 0 0 18 22:15 18 0 0 0 0 18
10:30 19 0 0 0 0 19 22:30 21 0 0 0 0 21
10:45 20 0 0 0 0 20 22:45 19 0 0 0 0 19
11:00 14 1 1 0 0 16 23:00 11 0 0 0 0 11
11:15 20 0 0 0 0 20 23:15 21 0 0 0 0 21
11:30 17 0 0 0 0 17 23:30 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:45 19 0 0 0 0 19 23:45 14 0 0 0 0 14
TOTAL 565 8 2 0 0 575 TOTAL 1,571 14 1 0 0 1,586

AM PEAK HOUR 8:00 AM AM PEAK HOUR 3:15 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 155 AM PEAK VOLUME 219

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 2,136 22 3 0 0 2,161
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.8% 1.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 151 3 1 0 0 155 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 192 1 0 0 0 193 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

IN IN

AM PEAK

Study Site 12 - Hunt Club Apartments

94



A13123

DATE: CITY: WRCOG

JOB #: SC3826 LOCATION: CLASS81 Dwy west of Goetz.

AM PM
TIME 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL Time 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

0:00 5 0 0 0 0 5 12:00 27 1 0 0 0 28
0:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 12:15 17 0 0 0 0 17
0:30 6 0 0 0 0 6 12:30 42 1 0 0 0 43
0:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 12:45 29 1 0 0 0 30
1:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 13:00 31 2 0 0 0 33
1:15 5 0 0 0 0 5 13:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
1:30 4 0 0 0 0 4 13:30 39 3 0 0 0 42
1:45 1 0 0 0 0 1 13:45 40 1 0 0 0 41
2:00 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:00 53 0 0 0 0 53
2:15 4 0 0 0 0 4 14:15 38 0 0 0 0 38
2:30 2 0 0 0 0 2 14:30 32 0 0 0 0 32
2:45 4 0 0 0 0 4 14:45 25 0 0 0 0 25
3:00 4 0 0 0 0 4 15:00 38 1 0 0 0 39
3:15 8 0 0 0 0 8 15:15 39 1 0 0 0 40
3:30 12 0 0 0 0 12 15:30 38 0 1 0 0 39
3:45 15 0 0 0 0 15 15:45 39 0 0 0 0 39
4:00 13 0 0 0 0 13 16:00 28 0 0 0 0 28
4:15 11 0 0 0 0 11 16:15 32 1 0 0 0 33
4:30 23 0 0 0 0 23 16:30 33 0 0 0 0 33
4:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 16:45 23 0 0 0 0 23
5:00 10 0 0 0 0 10 17:00 28 0 0 0 0 28
5:15 18 0 0 0 0 18 17:15 39 0 0 0 0 39
5:30 21 0 0 0 0 21 17:30 31 0 0 0 0 31
5:45 28 0 0 0 0 28 17:45 27 0 0 0 0 27
6:00 14 0 0 0 0 14 18:00 17 0 0 0 0 17
6:15 25 1 0 0 0 26 18:15 24 0 0 0 0 24
6:30 37 0 0 0 0 37 18:30 19 0 0 0 0 19
6:45 30 0 0 0 0 30 18:45 24 0 0 0 0 24
7:00 47 1 0 0 0 48 19:00 20 1 0 0 0 21
7:15 65 0 0 0 0 65 19:15 17 0 0 0 0 17
7:30 72 0 0 0 0 72 19:30 13 0 0 0 0 13
7:45 87 0 0 0 0 87 19:45 17 0 0 0 0 17
8:00 53 0 0 0 0 53 20:00 10 0 0 0 0 10
8:15 30 1 0 0 0 31 20:15 18 2 0 0 0 20
8:30 16 2 1 0 0 19 20:30 18 0 0 0 0 18
8:45 17 0 0 0 0 17 20:45 16 0 0 0 0 16
9:00 30 0 0 0 0 30 21:00 9 0 0 0 0 9
9:15 14 0 0 0 0 14 21:15 8 0 0 0 0 8
9:30 23 0 0 0 0 23 21:30 16 0 0 0 0 16
9:45 20 0 0 0 0 20 21:45 8 0 0 0 0 8

10:00 25 1 0 0 0 26 22:00 5 0 0 0 0 5
10:15 27 0 0 0 0 27 22:15 4 0 0 0 0 4
10:30 17 1 0 0 0 18 22:30 11 0 0 0 0 11
10:45 31 0 0 0 0 31 22:45 10 0 0 0 0 10
11:00 24 0 0 0 0 24 23:00 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:15 25 1 0 0 0 26 23:15 6 0 0 0 0 6
11:30 22 0 0 0 0 22 23:30 2 0 0 0 0 2
11:45 16 0 1 0 0 17 23:45 1 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL 987 8 2 0 0 997 TOTAL 1,092 15 1 0 0 1,108

AM PEAK HOUR 7:15 AM AM PEAK HOUR 1:30 PM
AM PEAK VOLUME 277 AM PEAK VOLUME 174

CLASS 1 CARS TOTAL: AM+PM 2,079 23 3 0 0 2,105
CLASS 2 2-AXLE TRUCKS % OF TOTAL 98.8% 1.1% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

CLASS 3 3-AXLE TRUCKS 277 0 0 0 0 277 
CLASS 4 4-AXLE TRUCKS 125 0 0 0 0 125 
CLASS 5 5-AXLE + TRUCKS

 

PM PEAK

24-HOUR ROADWAY SEGMENT COUNTS (WITH CLASSIFICATION)
Prepared by AimTD LLC  tel. 714 253 7888 cs@aimtd.com

THREE DAYS

OUT OUT

AM PEAK

Study Site 12 - Hunt Club Apartments

95



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 

May 2, 2023 

Page 12 of 13  

Appendix B: Apartment 
Characteristics 

  

96



Appendix B: Apartment Characteristics

Studio
One 

Bedroom
Two 

Bedrooms
Three 

Bedrooms
Four 

Bedrooms
Total # of 

DUs
Total # of 
Bedrooms

Average # 
Bedrooms 

per DU
Studio

One 
Bedroom

Two 
Bedrooms

Three 
Bedrooms

Four 
Bedrooms

Average 
Size of 

Unit per 
Complex

 Sum of 
Area of All 

Dus 

 Average 
Square 

Footage 
per DU 
(Sq. Ft.) 

1 Central Zone Oakwood Apartments
15170 Perris Blvd, 
Moreno Valley, CA 

92551
+1 951-243-0800 N/A - - 80 93 68 241 711 3.0  -  -            832         1,042         1,282         1,052      250,642 1040.01

2 Northwest Zone
Springbrook Park 

Apartments
1066 Orange St, 

Riverside, CA 92501
+1 951-682-9774 N/A - 40 32 40 - 112 224 2.0  -            800            967         1,100  -            956      106,944 954.86

3 Central Zone
Vista Springs 
Apartments

21550 Box Springs Rd, 
Moreno Valley, CA 

92557
+1 951-276-0334 N/A - 108 104 - - 212 316 1.5  -            690            960  -  -            825      174,360 822.45

4 Northwest Zone
Vesada Apartment 

Homes

3390 Country Village 
Road, Riverside, CA 

92509
+1 951-462-2198 california.weidner.com 18 72 153 18 - 261 450 1.7            629            782         1,021         1,168  -            900      244,863 938.17

5 Southwest Zone
Morning Ridge 

Apartments
30660 Milky Way Dr, 
Temecula, CA 92592

+1 951-699-0886 morningridgeapts.com - 74 126 - - 200 326 1.6            680            950  -  -            815      170,020 850.10

6 Northwest Zone Stonegate Apartments
6506 Doolittle Ave, 
Riverside, CA 92503

(951) 351-9445 stonegateriverside.com 1 79 80 - - 160 240 1.5            300            705            905  -  -            637      128,395 802.47

7 Southwest Zone
River's Edge Apartment 

Homes
2088 E Lakeshore Dr, 

Lake Elsinore, CA 92530
+1 951-678-8553

riversedgeapartmentlivi
ng.com

- 96 88 - - 184 272 1.5  -            762         1,089  -  -            926      168,984 918.39

8
Hemet/San Jacinto 

Zone
Mayberry Colony 

Apartments
40389 Mayberry Ave # 
A1, Hemet, CA 92544

+1 951-929-3380
www.mayberrycolony.co

m
- 34 55 - - 89 144 1.6  -            790            962  -  -            876       79,770 896.29

9 Pass Zone
Summit Ridge 
Apartments

555 N Hathaway St # 
1101, Banning, CA 

92220
+1 951-849-3001

www.summitridgebanni
ng.com

- - 40 40 - 80 200 2.5  -            850         1,058  -  -            954       42,320 529.00

10
Hemet/San Jacinto 

Zone
Riverdale Apartments

1250 S Cawston Ave, 
Hemet, CA 92545

+1 951-766-5672
www.rentriverdaleapts.c

om
- - 36 60 - 96 252 2.6  -  -            984         1,033  -         1,009       97,404 1014.63

11 Northwest Zone
Parkridge Meadows 

Apartments
219 E Parkridge Ave, 
Corona, CA 92879

+1 951-736-8681 www.allenproperties.net - - 87 1 - 88 177 2.0  -  -            780  -  -            780       67,860 771.14

12 Central Zone Hunt Club Apartments
1355 S Perris Blvd, 
Perris, CA 92570

+1 951-657-0228
www.huntclubperris.co

m
- - 203 - - 203 406 2.0  -  -            962  -  -            962      195,286 962.00

Name
Study Site 

#
TUMF Zone Address Phone # Apartment Website

# of Apartment Style Apartment Size (Sq. Ft.)

&---------------- 97



Christopher Gray and Chris Tzeng, WRCOG 

May 2, 2023 

Page 13 of 13  

Appendix C: Correlation Plots  

98



Appendix C: Correlation Plots

Daily Trip Generation by Average Size of Dwelling UnitDaily Trip Generation by # of Dwelling Units in Complex
Daily Trip Generation by Average # of Bedrooms Per Dwelling 

Unit

AM Peak Trip Generation by # of Dwelling Units in Complex

PM Peak Trip Generation by # of Dwelling Units in Complex

AM Peak Trip Generation by Average # of Bedrooms Per 
Dwelling Unit

PM Peak Trip Generation by Average # of Bedrooms Per Dwelling 
Unit

AM Peak Trip Generation by Average Size of Dwelling Unit

PM Peak Trip Generation by Average Size of Dwelling Unit

y = 249.92x + 601.26
R² = 0.0813

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5

Da
ily

 T
rip

s 
G
en

er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Average # of Bedrooms per DU

Average # of Bedrooms per DU

y = 20.854x + 50.612
R² = 0.0758

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5

AM
 P
ea
k 
Tr
ip
s 
G
en

er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Average # of Bedrooms per DU

Average # of Bedrooms per DU

y = 19.26x + 50.489
R² = 0.0769

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5

PM
 P
ea
k 
Tr
ip
s G

en
er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Average # of Bedrooms per DU

Average # of Bedrooms per DU

y = 1.4463x ‐ 174.18
R² = 0.2107

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200

Da
ily

 T
rip

s 
G
en

er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Average DU Size (Sq. Ft.)

Average DU Size (Sq. Ft.)

y = 0.1258x ‐ 18.538
R² = 0.2131

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200

AM
 P
ea
k 
Tr
ip
s 
G
en

er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Average DU Size (Sq. Ft.)

Average DU Size (Sq. Ft.)

y = 0.1319x ‐ 27.14
R² = 0.2789

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200

PM
 P
ea
k 
Tr
ip
s G

en
er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)
Average DU Size (Sq. Ft.)

Average DU Size (Sq. Ft.)

y = 5.7897x + 162
R² = 0.7617

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Da
ily

 T
rip

s 
G
en

er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Total # of Dwelling Units

Total # of Dwelling Units

y = 0.4893x + 12.967
R² = 0.7277

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

AM
 P
ea
k 
Tr
ip
s 
G
en

er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Total # of Dwelling Units

Total # of Dwelling Units

y = 0.4552x + 15.198
R² = 0.7495

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

PM
 P
ea
k 
Tr
ip
s G

en
er
at
ed

 (V
eh

)

Total # of Dwelling Units

Total # of Dwelling Units

• 

• 
+ 

,.'v 4-;'~:-';• 
+ + 

t 
+ 
t 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

• • 
1 .. ! ... •·····; ·························· + 

: .. 
• + + 

• 
• . . .............. . 

~ ... •·········!··········· . : .. 
• t 

• 

• 
;..~·········~·············~········· 

• • • • • ,-

+ 

t 

t 

t 

t 

t 
+ 
t 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

t 
+ 
t 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

t • 
• 

t t 

• 

• 

'. ---:·::<:" 

99



Item 7.C

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: REAP SRP 1.0 & 2.0 Housing Activities Update
Contact: Chris Gray, Deputy Executive Director, cgray@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6710 
Date: August 17, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file.

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to provide an update regarding WRCOG's activities related to REAP grants
which support housing-related planning efforts. 

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #2 - Identify and help secure grants and other potential funding opportunities for projects and
programs that benefit member agencies.

Background: 
The Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) Grant Subregional Partnership Program is intended to
increase planning to accelerate housing production throughout the SCAG region through implementable
actions that will increase housing supply to meet the 6th Cycle Regional Housing Needs Assessment
(RHNA).  The Subregional Partnership Program (SRP), conducted as part of the initial REAP funding,
also known as REAP 1.0, has been designed to augment and complement funds that were awarded to
jurisdictions by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) pursuant to
SB 2 Planning Grants and the Local Early Action Program (LEAP) grant program.
 
SCAG is receiving a second allocation of funding deemed "REAP 2.0," a flexible Program that seeks to
accelerate progress towards State housing goals and climate commitments through a strengthened
partnership between the State of California, its regions, and local entities.  REAP 2.0 seeks to accelerate
infill housing development, reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT), increase housing supply at all
affordability levels, affirmatively further fair housing, and facilitate the implementation of adopted regional
and local plans to achieve these goals. 
 
Housing Overview in the WRCOG Subregion
 
The REAP Program, along with other State programs, is ultimately intended to increase the supply of
housing within California, which is thought to reduce housing cost and make housing more available and
affordable to California residents.  When evaluating the potential benefits of the use of REAP funds, it is
helpful to understand trends related to housing within the WRCOG subregion. 

100

mailto:cgray@wrcog.us


 
WRCOG regularly tracks building permits and development activity through the TUMF Program.  Based
on TUMF Program reporting by jurisdiction, WRCOG is able to maintain a comprehensive overview of
development activity across the WRCOG subregion.  
 
Based on this data, WRCOG determined that approximately 110,000 residential permits were issued
between 2003 and 2023.  Of these permits, 81% were for single-family units with the remaining 19% for
multi-family units.  Approximately one-half of these permits were issued between 2003 and 2006 with the
remaining permits issued from 2007 or later.  Even with an increase in development activity overall since
2015, the number of residential permits has remained relatively stable at approximately 5,000 to 6,000
per year.  While there has been a recent increase in multi-family permits, there has been a
corresponding decrease in the number of single-family permits.  Figures 1, 2, and 3 on Attachment 1 to
this Staff Report provide the number of permits by dwelling unit type and the total number of permits from
2003 to 2023. 
 
During this time, there has been a significant increase in median home prices across Riverside County. 
For the entire County, median home prices have increased from $277,239 in 2003 to $628,000 in 2023. 
The median home price has therefore increased by 127% during this same period.  During this same
period, median household income Countywide has increased from $44,598 to $78,690, which is an
increase of 76%.  Based on this data, we can conclude that household income growth has significantly
lagged increases in home prices.  In addition, for comparison, the cumulative inflation rate from 2003 to
2023 for the country is about 59%.  
 
Another significant trend related to housing supply is the prevalence of larger home-builders. 
Approximately 80% - 90% of all building permits are generated through applications submitted by larger,
publicly-traded corporations such as Lennar, Pulte, Meritage, Tri-Point, KB, and DR  Horton.  These
builders often build groups of homes, securing multiple TUMF permits at once.  The remaining 10% -
20% of TUMF applications originate from contractors and individual home-owners who develop a single
home.  
 
WRCOG also evaluated the number of available residential lots that could be developed within the
WRCOG subregion.  Based on data supplied by WRCOG member agencies, it is estimated that as many
as 200,000 residential lots have some level of entitlement, an approved Development Agreement, or
other mechanism that would allow those lots to develop with limited additional effort.  Based on
anecdotal evidence, it would appear that residential developers are prioritizing the acquisition of
previously approved but unbuilt sites instead of focusing on new entitlements given the cost and time
required to complete the environmental process.  Given the current pace of development, staff estimates
that it could take 30 years for all of the unbuilt lots to be absorbed if no further entitlements are granted.  
 
A final item evaluated by WRCOG was the instance of accessory dwelling units (ADUs) which have been
permitted within Riverside County.  Based on the most recent data provided by the HCD, the level of
ADU construction in Riverside County appears to be nominal.  In total, there were only 229 ADUs
permitted for final occupancy in all jurisdictions within Riverside County in a single year.  That total
includes both the incorporated areas and the unincorporated areas across Riverside County - inclusive
of both the WRCOG & Coachella Valley regions.  Based on research compiled by WRCOG, it appears
that over two-thirds of all ADU applications statewide are not completed due to cost, difficulty in securing
permits, or other constraints.  
 

101



Given the data above, WRCOG evaluated the likelihood that the pace of residential construction would
change significantly from current levels.  WRCOG determined that the most likely scenario is that the
level of construction would not change significantly from current levels based on the following
considerations:
 

Household incomes are not likely to increase significantly over current levels, meaning that those
residents who are currently unable to afford to purchase a home are not likely to be able to do so.  
If there are not sufficient buyers, then home builders will not build additional homes beyond their
current level since they are unlikely to build more homes than the market can conceivably absorb. 
Many key stakeholders within these homebuilding companies have prior experience with an
economic downturn and are cautious when it comes to increasing their rate of construction beyond
the level that they know the market can absorb. The fact that the rate of residential construction
has remained constant since 2015 leads credence to this perspective. 
The rate of residential development also is not constrained by the number of available lots. 
Because of this, any efforts to increase the number of available lots is not likely to change the
pace of construction.   
The majority of construction continues to be for single-family homes.  Additional unit construction
associated with new development types such as ADUs are not likely to increase the housing
supply. 
There is a recent trend for more multi-family housing projects with a commensurate reduction in
single-family units.  If this trend continues, there will likely be a similar number of total units with
the share between single-family and multi-family units fluctuating, depending on market
conditions.  

 
Housing-Related Legislation
 
Much of the recent discussion in California related to housing has focused on State attempts to impose
additional requirements on local governments or limit discretionary actions by local governments,
particularly those with land use authority.  An example of one such long-standing regulation is the
Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA), which is a process through which the State of California
allocates a number of units, stratified by affordability, to each local jurisdiction.  That jurisdiction is then
responsible for adopting a Housing Element, which documents potential housing sites and policies which
the jurisdiction will employ to facilitate housing construction. 
 
Over the past several years, there has been a proliferation of additional legislation related to local land
use decision-making and project approvals.  Some noteworthy examples include:
 

SB 9 - also known as the 'fourplex bill,' allows single-family zoned lots to be subdivided and
developed with up to two primary dwelling units on each lot.
SB 330 - restricts or limits downzoning (no net loss), freezes development fees at pre-application
phase, prohibits growth control measures, and expands permit streamlining provisions for
residential developments.
SB 743 - changes CEQA requirements for evaluating transportation impacts from Level of Service
(LOS) to VMT to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and encourage infill development.
AB 602 - requires impact fees to be based on size (not per dwelling unit) and require local
agencies to publicly post all fees and exactions associated with a residential development project.
AB 2011 & SB 6 - provides avenues for permitting residential development in commercial zones.

102



 
What is noteworthy is that while much of the focus has been on legislative efforts in California, there
appears to be a growing effort nationwide by State Legislatures to limit local land use authority or
otherwise exert influence over land use decisions, which have historically been a province of local
governments.  Some national examples where legislative efforts have been implemented or are currently
being considered include but are not limited to the following:
 

Colorado
Connecticut
Florida 
Maryland
Montana
New Jersey
New York 
Virginia
Washington

 
As a further example of this trend, several municipalities in Texas are considering legislation similar to
SB 9.  In many instances, the motive for this legislative activity is related to housing affordability and
reflect a desire by policy-makers to take some action to increase housing supply and therefore reduce
the cost of housing.  Because of that, staff can only assume that there will continue to be additional
efforts to restrict local land use controls. 
 
REAP Funding
 
Over the past several years, many local governments have expressed a need for additional funding for
planning for and implementing housing projects, noting that they often lacked the resources to fully
update General Plans, Zoning Codes, Housing Elements, and other related documents.  While the State
has long mandated that local governments comply with the requirements of the RHNA process, they
rarely have provided any funding to assist with this process.  Examples of these funding programs
include SB 2, which provided direct funding to local agencies, and the REAP Program.  The concept
behind the REAP Program was to create a flexible source of funds that local governments could use for
planning purposes with the ultimate goal of creating additional housing within California. 
 
The REAP Program is administered jointly by HCD and Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs). 
For WRCOG, this structure means that HCD and SCAG are providing the funding to WRCOG through a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  This MOU process requires SCAG to approve anticipated
projects prior to the project initiation to ensure that entities such as WRCOG who are receiving funds are
able to be reimbursed for their expenses. 
 
During initial discussions regarding REAP funding with WRCOG member agencies through WRCOG's
Planning Directors Committee, multiple themes became evident:
 

The majority of WRCOG member agencies needed some level of assistance with preparing and
submitting their housing elements, particularly as it relates to some of the new requirements
recently implemented by HCD. 
Many jurisdictions found it challenging to process development applications given the level of
development activity they were experiencing.

103



Jurisdictions often needed assistance with technical studies and documents to allow them to
address new legislative requirements. 

 
With this feedback in mind, staff developed an approach to REAP which focused on helping WRCOG
member jurisdictions comply with the ever-changing State regulations while maximizing their local
discretion over land use decisions.  Staff also sought to provide flexible solutions that reflect each
jurisdiction's needs within the REAP framework. 
 
REAP SRP 1.0 Activities Update
 
WRCOG was allocated approximately $1.7M through the REAP SRP program to provide assistance to
the subregion's local jurisdictions.  WRCOG proposed projects to utilize the allocated funding, which was
approved in late 2020.  WRCOG later entered into a MOU with SCAG in March 2021, that includes
approval of the proposed projects.  Since 2021, WRCOG has completed and continues to work on a
variety of projects utilizing REAP funding.  Some projects are intended to be a resource for all WRCOG
member agencies, while other projects focus on providing direct assistance to individual cities.  All
projects will be completed by December 2023.  A summary of these projects is provided below and
additional information can be found on WRCOG's website at https://wrcog.us/335/Housing.
 
These projects include: 

SB 9 Toolkit - includes a model ordinance, infographic, fact sheet, development scenarios, and
soon to include a technical memo that will look at the potential applicability of the bill across each
city considering several limitations set by the legislation.  The purpose of this toolkit is to provide
member agencies with the maximum amount of control over SB 9 applications should any
applications come forward. 
Objective Design Standards Toolkit - contains a variety of model standards from many different
design styles found throughout the Western Riverside County region, agencies can pick and
choose which standards they would like to use or incorporate.  Similar to the SB 9 toolkit, this tool
is intended to provide member agencies with the ability to have the maximum level of control over
housing projects within the context of existing State legislation and regulations. 
Affordable Housing Pipeline - a mapped inventory of known affordable housing projects in the
WRCOG subregion that are currently in progress or recently completed and includes additional
data related to affordable housing development.  The purpose of the pipeline is to be a resource
for member agencies and the Housing Authority of Riverside County in understanding where
affordable housing projects are, what phase they are in, and identifying good candidate sites
based on requirements and scoring criteria for funding opportunities. 
GIS Underutilization and Sites Analysis - helps jurisdictions identify locations that are built out
substantially below what is currently allowed by zoning.  These data sets and maps allow each
member city to understand where, and by how much, properties are ready for redevelopment.
Pro-housing Designation Feasibility Study - will assess the likelihood of a city's ability to
successfully apply for HCD's Pro-housing Designation.  Having HCD's Pro-housing Designation
will open cities up for additional funding opportunity for housing and potentially allow them to score
higher on other State planning and transportation funding opportunities as well. 
Local Housing Assistance - provides customized assistance to requesting cities.  Activities have
included SB 330 application assistance, housing development preliminary application review, in-
lieu fee development of an inclusionary housing ordinance, pro-housing designation application

104

https://wrcog.us/335/Housing


assistance and submittal, and municipal code amendments.  The purpose of this assistance is to
provide customized assistance, helping cities with activities that are specific to their city, where
staff time or budget might be limited, therefore making the activity burdensome or infeasible. 

 
REAP SRP 2.0 Overview
 
The REAP 2.0 Program was established as part of the 2021 California Comeback Plan under AB 140
that builds on REAP 1.0 but expands the Program's focus by integrating housing and climate goals. 
REAP 2.0 Program objectives are to (1) accelerate infill development that facilitates housing supply,
choice, and affordability; (2) affirmatively further Fair Housing; and (3) reduce VMT.

The State has made approximately $600M available state-wide to fund REAP 2.0 Programs.  Of that,
SCAG is receiving approximately $246M.  One of SCAG's programs is a second round of the SRP in
partnership with local Councils of Governments (COGs).  WRCOG is eligible to receive up to $1.6M in
SRP funding through REAP 2.0.  Other COGs and some counties, including Riverside County, have also
been allocated REAP SRP 2.0 funding, separate from the WRCOG allotment.  This amount is based on
a non-competitive allocation formula set by SCAG.  
 
REAP SRP 2.0 Application & Timeline Update
 
WRCOG submitted an application to SCAG in early June 2023 for activities it will utilize REAP 2.0 SRP
funding and anticipates receiving feedback to address adjustments and clarifications required by HCD
and SCAG.  In the submitted application, WRCOG outlined two projects:
 

1. Pro-housing Designation Assistance - For cities likely able to achieve the successful award of the
designation, assist interested cities with HCD's Prohousing Application to meet requirements and
provide assistance with submittal and response.  For cities which are likely not well positioned,
offer assistance that would help it score higher so that a successful application can be submitted
and award designated. 

2. Housing Element Implementation - Assist cities with implementing Housing Element programs that
go above and beyond the minimum legislative requirements, further infill development, reduce
VMT, and Affirmatively Further Fair Housing.  Providing assistance to cities with this second round
of funds will likely be more limiting; WRCOG will be reaching out to individual cities to coordinate
on potential requests for assistance.  

 
SCAG has indicated that additional procurements will be required by the State.  To meet these
requirements, WRCOG will likely have to open a new RFP to establish a bench of on-call consultants to
work on REAP SRP 2.0 projects.  WRCOG is continuing to work closely with SCAG on how to satisfy
these requirements as to not cause an undue delay.  An MOU is anticipated to be ready for review
between January and March 2024, and will be presented to the Executive Committee shortly thereafter
for approval and to enable the WRCOG Executive Director to execute. 

Prior Action(s): 
August 9, 2023:  The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 
 
March 16, 2023:  The Technical Advisory Committee received and filed. 
 

105



March 6, 2023:  The Executive Committee directed staff to submit a grant application to the Southern
California Association of Governments for the SRP under REAP 2.0 Program in the amount of $1.6M.
 
February 9, 2023:  The Planning Directors Committee received and filed.

Fiscal Impact: 
WRCOG's REAP SRP 2.0 grant application, if approved by SCAG, will allow WRCOG to secure up to
$1.6M in funding through the REAP 2.0 Program.  Once this grant application is approved by SCAG,
WRCOG and SCAG will execute an MOU which will allow WRCOG to secure this funding. This MOU will
be brought to the WRCOG Executive Committee for its approval at a subsequent meeting.  The amount
is set by a formula allocation and has been included in the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Agency Budget.

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - WRCOG Region Building Permit Data 2003 to 2023

106

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2096507/WRCOG_Region_Building_Permit_Data_2003_to_2023.pdf


WRCOG Region Building Permit Data- 2003 to 2023

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

 20,000

N
um

be
r o

f U
ni

ts

Fiscal Year

Figure 1
SF DU by Year

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

N
um

be
r o

f U
ni

ts

Fiscal Year

Figure 2
MF DU by Year

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

N
um

be
r o

f U
ni

ts

Fiscal Year

Figure 3
Total DU by Year

107


	Technical Advisory Committee Agenda
	Item 5.A - Cover Page
	Item 6.A - Cover Page
	Item 7.A - Cover Page
	Item 7.A - Attachment 1 - EMCC membership composition
	Item 7.B - Cover Page
	Item 7.B - Attachment 1 - Single-Family Trip Generation Memo
	Item 7.B - Attachment 2 - Multifamily Trip Generation Memo
	Item 7.C - Cover Page
	Item 7.C - Attachment 1 - WRCOG Region Building Permit Data 2003 to 2023

